


GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies
to which a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such
companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a
risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities
traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a
liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the
contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or
any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Perfect Optronics Limited (the “Company’)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors,
having made all reasonable enquires, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the
information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading
or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would make any Statement herein
or this report misleading.
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On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), |
present the annual results of Perfect Optronics Limited
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2018 (the “Year”) to all of its shareholders.

Against the backdrops of the slowed GDP growth and
Sino-American trade tensions, mobile phone shipment in
China decreased during the Year. Meanwhile, market
concentration to top brands continued to advance in the
mobile phone market. Such trends have imposed
significant impact to the Group’s business which involves
in the mobile phone components supply chain for those
non-mainstream mobile phone manufacturers. To mitigate
the prolonged difficulties which the Group has
encountered in the recent years, we have enlarged the
trades of medium-to-large sized display products applied
on computer notebooks, monitors and televisions and
introduced certain mainland China suppliers in our
supplier network. The Group’s revenue for the Year
amounted to approximately HK$254.1 million, representing
a decrease of 32% as compared with 2017. While
diversifying products has stabilized the dropping sales, the
Group still recorded a consolidated loss attributable to
equity holders of the Company for the Year of
approximately HK$55.8 million, representing a decrease in
loss of approximately HK$42.5 million as compared with
2017.

As part of our measures to improve the Group’s
performance, we have leveraged longstanding
partnerships with our suppliers and sought to introduce
digital information signage and electronic shelf display
products during the Year.

On the other hand, the virtual reality (“VR”) market was
not as promising as it had been generally expected. The
growth of VR market even paced down following
alleviation of price war in 2017. This further reflects that
the content development for VR is yet to be ready and we
see a remote path to mass adoption. During the Year, the
Group’s optics products segment recorded a revenue of
approximately HK$4.6 million, representing a decrease of
approximately HK$12.2 million as compared with 2017.
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As for the Group’s investment, in early 2015, the Group
subscribed for certain preferred shares of Mobvoi Inc.
(“Mobvoi”) which principally engaged in the business of
developing and providing voice search systems on mobile,
smart wearable and other devices. The development of
Mobvoi continues to progress at a stable pace. It was
endorsed as Al 100 for the two consecutive years of
2017 and 2018 by CB Insights. During the Year, it
launched several new model smart watches (TicWatch),
wireless earphones (TicPod) and portable smart speakers,
which received generally positive reviews. It has
established various smart experience stores in mainland
China and is seeking to extend its footprints abroad.

We have strived to expand our business for the past
couple of years through diversification of products and
investments. Solid supplier network and keen eyes for up-
and-coming electronic products remain the core
competence of the Group. We are very pleased that in
March 2019, we have deepened cooperation with our
longstanding partner, Innolux Corporation and Novatek
Microelectronics Corp. through their investments in our
subsidiary which is engaged in the provision of total
solutions for electronic information signage and electronic
shelf display products. Electronic shelf display products
are one of the new products in the display products
market. We strive to become one of the first movers in
this market and pave ways to a new chapter of the
Group’s outlook.

I, on behalf of the Board, would like to present my
sincere gratitude to our shareholders, business partners
and customers for their support and trust over the years.
| also highly appreciate the contribution and dedication of
our management and staff.

Cheng Wai Tak
Chairman
Perfect Optronics Limited

Hong Kong
20 March 2019
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The Group is principally engaged in the trading of display
components for electronics, the development and sale of
optics products and related electronic components. The
Group also processes some of the products which it
trades.

During the year ended 31 December 2018 (the “Year”),
the market of the Group’s mobile phone display panels
continued shrinking, therefore, the Group’s financial
performance remained unsatisfactory. The Group recorded
an approximately 32% year-on-year decrease in revenue
during the Year. During the Year, the Group’s revenue
amounted to approximately HK$254,072,000 (2017:
HK$371,518,000). Loss attributable to equity holders of
the Company for the Year amounted to approximately
HK$55,780,000 (2017: HK$98,329,000), representing a
decrease in loss of approximately HK$42,549,000 as
compared with 2017.

According to China Academy of Information and
Communications Technology, domestic mobile phone
shipments in China dropped 15.6% to 414.2 million units
in 2018 and the number of new model release reached
764, down 27.5% year-over-year. Market demand for
mobile phones is becoming mature and consumers’
purchase and change frequency of mobile phones have
slowed down. Furthermore, China’s domestic mobile
phone market continued to concentrate in several
dominating brands. The Group, being an upstream mobile
phone component supplier for those scattered non-
mainstream or second tier mobile phone manufacturers,
was seriously affected under such transformation and
trends. The Group recorded a revenue of approximately
HK$249,518,000 from its display products segment during
the Year (2017: HK$354,739,000), down by approximately
30% as compared with 2017. Sales of thin film transistor
liquid crystal display (“TFT-LCD”) panels and modules
showed a drop of 32% and amounted to approximately
HK$226,154,000 during the Year (2017: HK$330,304,000).
Driver integrated circuits (“ICs”) and polarisers recorded
revenues of approximately HK$3,268,000 (2017:
HK$11,400,000) and HK$5,208,000 (2017: HK$5,896,000)
in 2018, respectively. Both driver ICs and polarisers
showed a drop in revenue, while sales of light guide
plates (a display component), which amounted to
approximately HK$9,174,000 during the Year (2017:
HK$2,078,000), showed an increase as compared with
2017.
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During the Year, the Group has strived to expand its
product categories and enrich its product portfolio in
response to its continual shrinking market in mobile phone
display panels. Meanwhile, the Group has further
extended its supplier network in the mainland China. To
mitigate the severe impacts of the decrease in sales of
mobile phone display panels and the relevant shrinking
market, the Group has expanded to a large extent its
sales of medium-to-large sized display products in its
display product segment. These larger sized display
products are applied on computer notebooks, monitors
and televisions. Sales of medium-to-large sized display
products has become the major revenue driver of the
Group for the Year. While diversifying display products
has stabilized the fall of sales, relatively low gross profit
margins were yielding from the Group’s trading of these
products.

Apart from enlarging its sales in medium-to-large sized
display, the Group also has sought new market
opportunities by leveraging its longstanding partnerships
with its suppliers and experience in the display products
market. In the Hong Kong Electronic Fair (Autumn Edition)
2018, the Group exhibited its digital information signage
and electronic shelf display products.

The virtual reality (“VR”) market was not as promising as it
had been generally expected. It has continued its slow
march to mass adoption in 2018. The Group’s sales of
optics components decreased during the Year as
compared with 2017. Meanwhile, due to the fierce price
competition of similar products in the market and a lack
of breakthrough in content development, the Group faced
difficult challenges in the sales of its self-developed
automotive head-up display and VR entertainment
headsets. During the Year, the Group’s optics products
segment recorded a revenue of approximately
HK$4,554,000, representing an approximately
HK$12,225,000 decrease as compared with 2017 of
approximately HK$16,779,000.
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The Group subscribed for certain preferred shares of
Mobvoi Inc. (“Mobvoi”) in early 2015. Mobvoi is a private
company principally engaged in the business of
developing and providing voice search systems on mobile,
smart wearable and other devices. No dividend has been
received by the Group from Mobvoi since its investment.
The Group’s shareholding proportion in Mobvoi was
diluted to approximately 1.53% (on a fully diluted and as
converted basis) following Volkswagen AG’s investment in
Mobvoi in 2017. No new round of fund raising has been
made by Mobvoi during the Year. During the Year,
Mobvoi continued to enrich and update its product mix. It
has launched several new model smart watches
(TicWatch), wireless earphones (TicPod) and portable
smart speakers, which received generally positive reviews.
Various smart experience stores have been established in
Beijing, Shenzhen, Wuhan and Chengdu to promote and
retail Mobvoi’s products. In the near future, Mobvoi is
seeking continuous enrichment of its product lines,
expansion to offline channels and global footprints.

As the mobile phone market becomes mature and
consolidated after a blooming decade, the Group expects
an increasingly difficult and competitive landscape in the
relevant display component markets. Looking forward, the
Group will endeavor to improve its performance through
enriching product categories and exploring new business
opportunities. As mentioned above, during the Year, the
Group has started to step into a new display product
market, namely electronic information signage, which
includes various display products such as digital
information signage, electronic shelf displays, electronic
white board, etc. In March 2019, the Group has further
entered into a subscription and shareholders’ agreement
with Warriors Technology Investments Ltd. (“Warriors”), a
subsidiary of Innolux Corporation (“Innolux”) and Novatek
Investment Corporation Limited (“Novatek Investment”), a
subsidiary of Novatek Microelectronics Corp. (“Novatek
Corp.”) for the investments in shares of Perinnova Limited
(“Perinnova”), a subsidiary of the Company which wholly-
owns a subsidiary that principally engaged in total
solutions for electronic information signage. Each of
Warriors and Novatek Investment agreed to invest
USD190,000 into Perinnova. Upon completion of the
subscription for the shares in Perinnova, Perinnova will be
held as to 62%, 19% and 19% by the Group, Warriors
and Novatek Investment, respectively. Innolux and
Novatek Corp. are both suppliers of the Group and listed
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on the Taiwan Stock Exchange, the Group believes their
participation will help the Group capture the rising market.
In addition, the Group will continue to explore and
reinforce the business relationships with new suppliers
and customers in the mainland China and overseas to
widen its revenue base.

On the other hand, despite the enduring bottleneck that
VR market has been experiencing, the Group will keep
updating its technologies on optics products so as to
maximize its opportunities when the augmented reality and
VR markets are set for robust growth.

A slowdown in the global economy, including the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) economic climate, which
has been one of the major markets for display products,
would affect the results of the Group. A decrease in
market demand may put significant downward pressure
on the average selling prices. Reduced corporate and
commercial activities also have a negative impact on the
demand for and prices of the Group’s products. If the
economy continues to grow at a slow rate, or
experiences a prolonged recession, the Group’s business
and results of operations will continue to be adversely
affected.

The Group places orders with its suppliers based on the
Group’s forecast of future procurement, customers’
intentions and indicated orders, customers’ recent
purchase orders and the Group’s inventory levels. Any
unanticipated drop in sales could cause the Group’s
inventories to accumulate. As technology evolves quickly,
the Group’s inventories may become obsolete and may
adversely affect the Group’s financial position and results
of operations.

Product trends, industry trends and other factors beyond
the Group’s control may cause fluctuations in selling
prices and raw material prices, which could have a drastic
and adverse effect on the Group’s gross profit and net
profit.
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The Group’s activities are exposed to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, cash
flow and fair value interest rate risk, price risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. Details of which are set out in Note 3 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The following discussion should be read in conjunction
with the Group’s financial statements and its notes, which
are included in this report.

Total revenue of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018 amounted to approximately
HK$254,072,000, decreased by approximately 32% as
compared to approximately HK$371,518,000 in 2017.
Decrease in total revenue was attributable to the decrease
in revenue from the Group’s sales of display products,
including TFT-LCD panels and modules, driver ICs and
polarisers, and optics products.

Cost of sales of the Group mainly consisted of purchase
costs, processing and subcontracting charges, scrap loss,
provision for obsolete inventories and other direct costs.
Due to the decrease in revenue, purchase costs,
processing and subcontracting charges and scrap loss
decreased during the year ended 31 December 2018 as
compared with 2017. Meanwhile, net write back of
provision for obsolete inventories was recorded during the
Year. Total cost of sales for the year ended 31
December 2018 amounted to approximately
HK$268,428,000, decreased by approximately 37% as
compared to approximately HK$425,311,000 in 2017.

Gross loss amounting to approximately HK$14,356,000
was recorded for the year ended 31 December 2018
(2017: HK$53,793,000). The drop in the Group’s revenue
and low gross profit margins of the products sold during
the year ended 31 December 2018 led to the gross loss.
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Net other gains of approximately HK$865,000 (2017: net
other losses of HK$47,000) was recorded during the year
ended 31 December 2018. Net other gains for the year
ended 31 December 2018 mainly included fair value gain
in financial asset at FVTPL of approximately HK$719,000
(2017: Nil), while the net other losses for the year ended
31 December 2017 mainly comprised exchange losses.

The Group’s distribution and selling expenses for the year
ended 31 December 2018 amounted to approximately
HK$11,761,000, which is comparable to approximately
HK$11,939,000 in 2017.

The Group’s general and administrative expenses for the
year ended 31 December 2018 amounted to
approximately HK$26,867,000, representing an
approximately 7% decrease as compared to
approximately HK$28,973,000 in 2017. The decrease was
mainly attributable to the decrease in staff costs
attributable to decrease in headcount, bank charges and
professional fees during the year ended 31 December
2018.

The Group’s research and development expenses
amounted to approximately HK$3,365,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2018, increased by approximately
HK$800,000 as compared with 2017 of approximately
HK$2,565,000. The increase was mainly due to the
increase in staff costs incurred for products development.

The Group’s finance costs for the year ended 31
December 2018 mainly represented bank loans interest
expenses, while that for 2017 mainly represented factoring
charges. New bank loans were borrowed during the Year
to finance the Group’s business in mainland China.

No Hong Kong profits tax was provided by the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2018. Income tax during the
year ended 31 December 2018 mainly represented
deferred income tax credited to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income during the Year.
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Loss attributable to equity holders of the Company forthe HZE-_Z—NF+_A=+—HILFE AR
year ended 31 December 2018 amounted to RAlEzmiFHE ARILEIEY) A55,780,0008 T @ &
approximately HK$55,780,000, representing a decrease in = & — + 4 £998,329,000/% 7T ik 4 & 18 4
loss of approximately HK$42,549,000 as compared with  42,549,000/87C ' TEHREEZ T \F+=
2017 of approximately HK$98,329,000, which was mainly A=+—BIFEEHREFSRETRAIL LK
attributable to the decrease in the provision for obsolete & & Bl 4 BT 2K -

inventories and the reduction of operating expenses

during the year ended 31 December 2018.

The financial key performance indicators are analysed as T EB B RIBIEEZHFUOT ¢
follows:

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t-HLEE

Percentage
change
Increase/
Note 2017 (decrease)
BOLEE
P —E—tF #n/08d)
HK$'000
FET
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE B RE
Revenue WA 371,518 32)%
Gross loss Ei8 (i) (53,793) (73)%
Loss before interest, income tax, BRAE - FRER -
depreciation and amortisation TEREEREE
(“EBITDA”) ([EBITDA ) i) (95,461) (44)%
Loss for the year FEEIE (98,329) (43)%
Loss attributable to equity holders of ZNA @l #EzR A A
the Company FE(LEE (98,329) (43)%
Return on total assets (%) #8 B B 3 X (%) (i) -33.0%
Return on shareholders’ equity (%) A% B3 4 25 @l R & (%) (i) -37.8%
HK(6.63) cents
Loss per share (HK cents) MR A &R GEAL) (6.63)78 1L (43)%
2018 F
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KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS TEHBER

Cash and cash equivalents ReLHEEEY

Net current assets MBEEFE

Total assets BELT

Bank borrowings RITER

Total liabilities BERRE

Equity attributable to equity NN E S SN
holders of the Company JE G R 2

Total equity R B

Current ratio (times) MBI E ()

Quick ratio (times) RELL K (1F)

Gearing ratio (%) EREELE%)

Debt-to-asset ratio (%) BEEELE%)

Notes:

()

(vi)

(vii)

As the Group recorded gross loss and loss before interest, income
tax, depreciation and amortisation during the year ended 31
December 2018 and 2017, no gross profit margin and EBITDA
margin are presented

Return on total assets = Loss for the year/Total assets

Return on shareholders’ equity = Loss attributable to equity holders
of the Company/Equity attributable to equity holders of the
Company

Current ratio = Current assets/Current liabilities

Quick ratio = (Current assets — Inventories)/Current liabilities

Gearing ratio = Total interest-bearing debt/Total equity

Debt-to-asset ratio = Total interest-bearing debt/Total assets
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Note

=
Fit

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

L

(i)

(vi)

(vii)

As at 31 December

Rt=-ZA=t-H

2017

—E—tF
HK$'000
FHET

88,025
197,031
298,353

38,317

260,036
260,036

6.2 times
B.2f%

4.1 times
4115

0%

0%

Percentage
change
Increase/
(decrease)
BOLED
#,/ i)

(19)%
(29)%
(19)%

N/AT i F

(4)%

(22)%
(22)%

(1.4) times
(1.4)f%

(1.5) times
(1.5)15

N/AT &

N/AT i@

HREE-T-N\ER-Z-tF+-A=+—Hit
FEALEESERRBAEL  MEH - T8 REH

A 1R - B4R 2 7 E F & REBITDAR

BEERBRE-FEER EELE

BRERERE=ARARRFTEARGEEER AR

R R B AEIE D

ML E=RBEE/RBEE

YL E=(RBHEE — F8) /RBaE

ERGELE=EEBERREEE

BEEELER=GEEBER EELE



The Group’s funds are principally used to finance working ASBEMESTZHAERNEEES kR A
capital, and the growth and expansion of the Group's E£EZELHEEFAKNIERLIBERERES -
operations and sales network. The Group’s principal ZAEBTENE LR RAEOALCEELNIRELR
sources of funds are cash generated from operations and  $R1TfE K - REBIETEFER - BITEH MRS
bank borrowings. An analysis of the Group’s bank Z 2R :

deposits, bank balances and cash is as follows:

As at 31 December

BW+=ZA=+—H

2017

—E—+tF

HK$’000

FET
Total bank deposits, bank balances and $E1T1F 3K ~ SR1T& 62 N IR

cash B 108,973
Less: Restricted bank deposits included & : st ARBIEENF R

in current assets Hl R 17 17 3K (20,948)

Cash and cash equivalents e hREFEY 88,025

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank deposits, bank AEBMRRITFER  FITEH MRS NEEE
balances and cash are denominated in the following JiLA %] EEEHE

currencies:

As at 31 December

R+=ZBA=+-—-H
2017
—E—+tF
HK$’'000
FET
United States dollars (“USD”) EAE S 89,761
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) B (ABxl)) 15,424
Renminbi (‘RMB”) ARBETARE]D 2,913
New Taiwan dollars (“TWD”) meaw(maet]) 875
108,973

2018 £ # 15
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As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s bank borrowings
comprised fixed interest rate bank loans of approximately
HK$8,979,000, which were denominated in RMB and
repayable within a period not exceeding one year. The
Group had no bank borrowings as at 31 December 2017.

The capital of the Company only comprises ordinary
shares. There has been no change in the capital structure
of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2018.

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management
approach towards its treasury policies and thus
maintained a healthy liquidity position throughout the year.

The Group strives to reduce exposure to credit risk by
monitoring on an ongoing basis with reference to the
financial position of the debtors, past experience and
other factors. The Group performs regular credit
evaluations of its major customers. To manage liquidity
risk, the management closely monitors the Group’s
liquidity position and maintains sufficient cash and an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities to settle
the payables of the Group.
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The Group’s management policies, working environment,
career prospects and employees’ benefits have
contributed to building a good employee relations and
employee retention of the Group. The Group offers
competitive remuneration packages commensurate with
industry practice and provides various fringe benefits to
employees including medical benefits, social insurance,
provident funds, bonuses and a share option scheme.
The management regularly reviews its employee’s
remuneration packages to ensure they are up to prevailing
market standard.

As at 31 December 2018, the employee headcount of the
Group was 72 (2017: 98) and the total staff costs,
including directors’” emoluments, amounted to
approximately HK$24,492,000 during the year (2017:
HK$25,198,000).

The Group has established long term business
relationships with its major suppliers for over ten years.
The Group has entered into long term supply framework
agreements with these suppliers. The Group will endeavor
to maintain its established relationship with these existing
suppliers.

The Group has a well-established business relationship
with its customers and has gained recognition in the TFT-
LCD panel industry in the PRC. Some of its customers
have over ten-year business relationships with the Group.
To deal with the recent downturn in the Group’s
business, the Group endeavours to secure the business
with existing customers and at the same time devotes to
develop new reliable customers in new markets.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities (2017: Nil).

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had pledged its
bank deposits of approximately HK$10,335,000 (2017:
HK$20,948,000) to bank to secure the banking facilities
granted to the Group.

AEBNERRE  THEE% BT NRRE
BENEYHARERERRT R HERERE
EE - REEAERREFAITEEND S
FNHFHEBREERDEN  QERRE
FOALR RS LARMRENE - ERE
EHRNREBFMAL RREFERITH
BKF -

RZBE-N\F+_A=+—HB HrEBFREEE
HAENRA(ZZT—+F:08A)  FRETHK
A (BIEEEE) 424,492,000 L (ZF—+
£ 1 25,198,000/ L) °

AEECREFBEHEARYATFANRBER
BRE ASEAZEHERT LREHEE
Rz - ARBEHBNEZFRAREEES
BEE R -

AEBERAXFHEEREXRBHEE XX FE
TFT-LCOER TR EERA - A0 B HALE
EHRAEBTENEBEIR - RERUGOHAE
BEBOTE AEERIBRERETFLH
X ARRGHmS  ERESEENTE
Eo

RNRZE-NEFE+_A=+—"HB KEFILTESE
ASABBEB(ZZE—HLF:8E)-o

RZE-NF+_A=+—8 K&EBE[IE
TR H SR 171F ;410,335,000 T (—ZZF —+
F 120,948,000/ 70) LENE R T A E B R RTT
BE -

2018 F 3}
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The Group’s business transactions, assets and liabilities
are principally denominated in USD, HK$, RMB and TWD.
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the Board will continuously
monitor the related foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not have any
significant capital commitments (2017: Nil).

The Board does not recommend nor declare any dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Save for the Group’s investment in certain preferred
shares of Mobvoi Inc., the Group did not hold any
significant investment in equity interest in any other
company as at 31 December 2018.

The Group did not have plans for material investments
and capital assets as at 31 December 2018.

The Group did not have any material acquisitions and
disposals of subsidiaries and affiliated companies during
the year ended 31 December 2018.
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A comparison of the Group’s business plan as set out in
the prospectus issued by the Company dated 24 January
2014 (the “Prospectus”) with actual business progress for
the period from 14 January 2014 (being the Latest
Practicable Date as defined in the Prospectus) to 31
December 2018 (the “Review Period”) is set out below.

TXEHINARBR —F—WUE—F -+ MBI
MERERZ(HBERERDAHEEBEASEH -
T-—NME-A+THBA(IBRERARE 2K
BRERAUTHAPZE_T-N\F+_A=1+—
A ((EEBEDNEFASREREGE
RZHEE -

Business objectives for the Review Period Actual Business Progress for the Review Period

EEBENEEER EEAENERXBER

(@)  Establishment or acquisition of panel processing plants in the PRC to expand our business vertically

PR B AR SZ SRR AR A0 TR IE B IR R R T

° Perform technology and capacity forecast
and planning

#E 1T B0 M EE B TRRI K A5 &

o Perform due diligence studies on target
panel processing plant(s) or rules and
compliance of operating panel processing
plant(s) in the PRC
HERERNIKFEETEREESHFASE
PRELCEERINTIHEORBRERENR

° Identify potential equipment supplier and
carrying out evaluation

MeBERERER LG

° Confirm expansion plan for cutting
processing plant
RY)E| N T E e 4% & 5T 2l

° Commence acquisition or establishment of
cutting processing plant

5 R WS SR S 1) &I 0 TR

° Purchase equipment (if establish cutting
processing plant)

BERBURAZDEMIKE)

° Recruit staff
REST

The Board resolved on 19 July 2018 to
change the use of proceeds to general
working capital use

BEEeN T \FLtATNARREHR
PERERENE-—REEES

2018 F 3}
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Business objectives for the Review Period

EEMENEERER

Perform trial run for cutting processing plant
P03 o0 Tk 55 B B & E

Commence acquisition or establishment of
slimming processing plant(s)
el & W B sl AR 7 SE b i TR B

Purchase equipment (if establish slimming
processing plant)

BEREWHAELNTHE)

Purchase additional equipment for the
cutting processing plant

RNEMIBEBERINRE

Commence full operation of cutting
processing plant(s)
PIEI N TMGEMis 2 m &

Perform trial run for slimming processing
plant
Bl ImERBRE

Actual Business Progress for the Review Period

EEPENERRBER

(b)  Expansion of our sales support team in the PRC to provide high quality services to our customers

BATPEEEXEEE AEPRHEEE RS

20

Recruit staff
REST

Continue to recruit staff if necessary
FEBEET(NEE

Arrange training to staff
ZH B TEF

Organise marketing activities

EHRMSERED

Annual Report 2018

The Group had recruited additional sales
and engineering staff to strengthen its sales
support team in the PRC
AEBCEBREIMEERTEAB AR
H e B &Y 8 & 2 1% B X

Relevant training activities had been
provided to new and existing staff
ERAMARNEAES TRHMAEEINES

The Group had continuously organised
various marketing activities to promote
sales and strengthen its market position
AEECHEEBZIEMISHEEEEURE
#E 85 & I AN 5% H 5 M



Business objectives for the Review Period

CEMENEBER

Actual Business Progress for the Review Period

EEAENERXBER

(c)  Expansion of our product portfolio to strengthen our product offerings

CEEMMAS  MABRERHRE

° Explore new products and suppliers

PR EM R HEER

° Evaluate new products and perform due
diligence on new supplier if necessary
FHEFTEmMmREFTHERETRBES (10

™ 2

The Company offered 330,000,000 shares for subscription
by way of placing in 2014 (the “Placing”). The net
proceeds from the Placing were approximately HK$76
million. During the Review Period, the net proceeds from

The Group had introduced new products
and new suppliers

AEBESIAFERLHHEER

Due diligence works on new suppliers had
been performed
EHAHERETERES

AARRKR_-_Z—NFEBEEHFAIRESR
330,000,0000% f& 5 LAt R & ([BE & 1) - BL & A
18 FIAH E 4976,000,0008 7T » MBI EEHIR - &
EBREFECARTISE

the Placing had been applied as follows:

Planned use of
proceeds as

stated in the Actual use of

Prospectus  Adjusted use proceeds
during the of proceeds during the
Review Period (Note) Review Period
HRER
YIS RIE BT SR IE B FRi8 R IE
R E BN RAZAZE REOBEHEN
FrE AR (B =E) ERAR
HK$’ million HK$’ million HK$’ million
BEAETT BEAET BEER
Establishment or acquisition of  FA B 5% =t I B
panel processing plants in the W TRE @ LAE
PRC to expand business BEIERER
vertically 40 — —
Repayment of bank loans EBERTER 17 17 17
Expansion of sales support team #& A A B §5 & & 2
in the PRC to provide high % mEFIREE
quality services to customers = R 7% 8 8 8
Expansion of product portfolio to L& &E F4AH4E @ i
strengthen product offerings EoiE 4 4 4
General working capital —MEEED 7 47 47
76 76 76
2018 4 &
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Note:

The business objectives as stated in the Prospectus were based on the
best estimation of the future market conditions made by the Group at the
time of preparing the Prospectus, whereas the uses of proceeds were
applied in accordance with the actual development of the market. As
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 19 July 2018,
subsequent to the Placing, the Group had made attempts to identify
possible panel processing plants to acquire. However, none of the panel
processing plants was found to be appropriate for the Group to acquire.
Furthermore, in view of the increasing challenges of the business
environment for the Group’s mobile phone display panels, the Company
considered that it would neither be cost effective nor advantageous to the
Group to proceed with establishment or acquisition of panel processing
plants in the near future. Instead, the remaining net proceeds should be
better utilised for other purpose of the Group’s business. Accordingly, the
Board resolved to change the use of the remaining net proceeds of
approximately HK$40 million originally allocated for the establishment or
acquisition of panel processing plants in the PRC to general working
capital use to facilitate an effective use of the financial resources of the
Group.
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The Company is committed to achieving high standards of
corporate governance with a view to safeguarding the
interests of its shareholders. To accomplish this, save as
set out below, the Company has adopted the principles
and the code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 15 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “GEM
Listing Rules”) on GEM (“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Company has complied with all the code provisions of the
CG Code, except the deviation as disclosed under the
section headed “Chairman and Chief Executive Officer”
below.

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by directors on terms no less
exacting than the required standard of dealings set out in
Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having
made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors have
complied with the required standard of dealings and the
code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
Directors adopted by the Company during the year.

>
e
R
B
—I-kml-l-
Off

KRB NHEESKENTEER  EERE
HEREFZE - BEKIBZ - BT XATEE N
RRARERMEBBARIHAR AR ([BR
FTl)GEM(IGEM ) &+ Em #H Al (| GEM E ™
RAND WEsAE O EE AT REERT
A1) &9 R Bl R <7 BIERSC o

REE-_ZFT—NF+_A=Z+—HILEFER "
RAREBTREEATHOA ST AMEX
WTRXEFEMITRER ] — S ENRES
LR AN o

ARREXRMA—ERBEFETERR 2R
ST BT R Z IR SERGEM E T R B %65.48
EXRSOTIRAREZLR DB EREBE - AR
FAEREBESFLARSH 2RBEFENF
NEETARAMERMNBEBEESLETESFRS
LB PRERIET A

2018 F 3}

23



24

>
M
i
o
S
Of

Up to the date of this annual report, the Board comprises
three executive Directors and three independent non-
executive Directors. The composition of the Board during
the year and up to the date of this annual report was as
follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Cheng Wai Tak (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Liu Ka Wing

Mr. Tse Ka Wing

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Wong Yik Chung John

Mr. Wong Chi Chiu

Mr. Li Shui Yan

The biographical details of all Directors and senior
management of the Company are set out on pages 65 to
67 of this annual report. To the best knowledge of the
Company, there is no financial, business, family or other
material or relevant relationships among members of the
Board.

The Board is responsible for establishing the strategic
direction of the Company and its subsidiaries; setting
objectives and business development plans; monitoring
the performance of the senior management; and assuming
responsibility for corporate governance. The management,
under the leadership of the Chief Executive Officer, is
responsible for implementing the strategies and plans
established by the Board and reporting on the
Company’s operations to the Board on a regular basis to
ensure effective performance of the Board’s
responsibilities.

The management provided all members of the Board with

monthly updates in accordance with the code provision
C.1.2 of the CG Code.
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The Company has arranged appropriate insurance
coverage on Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of
any legal actions taken against Directors and senior
management arising out of corporate activities. The
insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.

The Directors can attend meetings in person or through
other means of electronic communication in accordance
with the Company’s articles of association. All minutes of
the Board meetings were recorded in sufficient detail of
the matters considered by the Board and the decisions
made.
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Four regular board meetings were held during the year., BEZE@RFERBITMNATHE % - @ARES L
The attendance of individual Directors at these board EEZ@ @z 2BERWT :
meetings were as follows:
Number of
regular board
meetings
Name attended/held
HE BT
EHNESS
®E BERAE
Executive Directors: HITESF -
Mr. Cheng Wai Tak (Chairman) BB B (EE) 4/4
Mr. Liu Ka Wing BmfisE 4/4
Mr. Tse Ka Wing e e 4/4
Independent non-executive Directors: BIINTESF
Mr. Wong Yik Chung John EREBRE 4/4
Mr. Wong Chi Chiu EEMBEE 4/4
Mr. Li Shui Yan FmBEE 4/4
2018 % # 25
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Except for the service contract with Mr. Tse Ka Wing,
which commenced on 26 March 2015, each of the
executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial term of three years
commencing on the 7 February 2014, the listing date of
the shares of the Company (the “Listing Date”) and has
renewed the service contract for another term of three
years commencing on 7 February 2017. Either party has
the right to give not less than three months’ written notice
to terminate the respective service contract.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has
entered into an appointment letter with the Company for
an initial term of three years commencing on the Listing
Date and has renewed the appointment letter for another
term of three years commencing on 7 February 2017.

In compliance with the code provision A.4.2 of the CG
Code, all Directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy
should be subject to election by the shareholders at the
first general meeting after their appointment. By virtue of
article 112 of the articles of association of the Company,
the Board shall have power from time to time and at any
time to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a
casual vacancy or as an additional Director but the
number of Directors so appointed shall not exceed the
maximum number determined from time to time by the
shareholders in general meeting. Any Director appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only
until the first general meeting of the Company after his
appointment and be subject to re-election at such
meeting. Any Director appointed by the Board as an
addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until
the next following annual general meeting of the Company
and shall then be eligible for re-election.
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In compliance with the code provision in A.4.2 of the CG
Code, all Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years. Furthermore, pursuant to
article 108(a) of the articles of association of the
Company, at each annual general meeting, one-third of
the Directors for the time being, or, if their number is not
3 or a multiple of 3, then the number nearest to but not
less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation,
provided that every Director (including those appointed for
a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every 3 years. A retiring Director shall be
eligible for re-election. The Company at the general
meeting at which a Director retires may fill the vacated
office.

By virtue of article 108 of the articles of association of the
Company, Mr. Liu Ka Wing and Mr. Wong Yik Chung
John will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-election.

In compliance with Rules 5.05(1), 5.05(2) and 5.05A of the
GEM Listing Rules, the Company has appointed three
independent non-executive Directors, representing more
than one-third of the Board and with at least one of
whom having appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise. The
Company has received written annual confirmation from
each independent non-executive Director of his
independence pursuant to the requirements of the Rule
5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Board considers all
independent non-executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in
the GEM Listing Rules for the year.
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According to the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code,
the roles of the chairman and chief executive should be
separate and should not be performed by the same
individual.

Under the current management structure of the Company,
Mr. Cheng Wai Tak (“Mr. Cheng”) is the Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer. With Mr. Cheng’s extensive
experience in the industry, the Board believes that vesting
the roles of both Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in
the same person would provide the Company with strong
and consistent leadership, allow for effective and efficient
planning and implementation of business decisions and
strategies, and would be beneficial to the business
prospects and management of the Group.

Although Mr. Cheng performs both the roles of Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer, the division of responsibilities
between the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer is
clearly established. In general, the Chairman is
responsible for supervising the functions and performance
of the Board, while the Chief Executive Officer is
responsible for the management of the business of the
Group. The two roles are performed by Mr. Cheng
distinctly. The Board also considers that the current
management structure does not impair the balance of
power and authority between the Board and the
management of the Company given the appropriate
delegation of the power of the Board and the effective
functions of the independent non-executive Directors.
However, it is the long-term objective of the Company to
have these two roles performed by separate individuals
when suitable candidates are identified.
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The Board has established, with written terms of
reference, three board committees, namely audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee, to oversee particular aspects of the
Company’s affairs. The Board committees are provided
with sufficient resources to discharge their duties. The
written terms of reference for each Board committee are
in line with the GEM Listing Rules and are available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company,
respectively.

The Company has established an audit committee on 20
January 2014 with written terms of reference in
compliance with Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules and
code provision C.3 of the CG Code. The audit committee
consists of three independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Wong Yik Chung John, who has the
appropriate accounting and financial related management
expertise and serves as the chairman of the audit
committee, Mr. Wong Chi Chiu and Mr. Li Shui Yan.

The primary duties of the audit committee are (but without
limitation) to assist the Board in providing an independent
view of the effectiveness of the Company’s financial
reporting process and internal control and to review the
Company’s risk management and internal control systems,
to oversee the audit process and to perform other duties
and responsibilities as assigned by the Board.
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The audit committee held four meetings during the year. BZZE@NFRNEBTHEIESHE - EKE L@
lts composition and attendance of individual members at Bl ERNZEERLZEe g2 ERTNT
these audit committee meetings are as follows:
Number of audit
committee
meetings
Members of the audit committee attended/held
HEBITH
EREEE
EREEERE BERAE
Mr. Wong Yik Chung John ERAKE 4/4
Mr. Wong Chi Chiu =EEHBELE 4/4
Mr. Li Shui Yan Fin Bk E 4/4
During the vyear, the audit committee reviewed the RFER @ BEE E®%lﬁ$“ﬂ2¢fﬁﬁ7ﬁ%$ﬁ
Company’s annual financial statements, annual results & - E?%FE CHEREFEERE RWmE
announcement, interim and quarterly announcements and 7 # & i 57 A& & & l ZANEEZEREREIER

reports; discussed and reviewed the internal control and
risk management systems of the Group; reviewed the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal audit function;
met with the independent external auditors and reviewed
report from the independent external auditors regarding
their audit on annual financial statements.

The Company established a remuneration committee on
20 January 2014 with written terms of reference in
compliance with code provision B.1 of the CG Code. The
remuneration committee consists of three members, the
majority of whom are independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Wong Chi Chiu, who serves as the
chairman of the remuneration committee, Mr. Cheng Wai
Tak and Mr. Wong Yik Chung John.

The primary duties of the remuneration committee include
(but without limitation): (i) making recommendations to the
Directors on the policy and structure for all remuneration
of Directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing policies on such remuneration; (ii) determining
the terms of the specific remuneration packages of the
Directors and senior management; and (i) reviewing and
approving performance-based remuneration by reference
to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the
Directors from time to time.
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During the year, the remuneration committee held one
meeting for, inter alia, reviewing the policy and structure
for all remuneration of Directors and senior management
and made recommendations to the Board regarding the
remuneration packages of executive Directors and senior
management and director’s fee of independent non-
executive Directors. The remuneration committee was
satisfied with the existing arrangement and did not make
recommendation to the Board on any change of such
policy and structure. All the members of the remuneration
committee, including Mr. Wong Chi Chiu, Mr. Cheng Wai
Tak and Mr. Wong Yik Chung John, attended that
meeting.

Each of the Directors will receive a fee which is subject to
an annual adjustment at a rate to be reviewed by the
remuneration committee and be determined at the
discretion of the Board. The Company’s policy concerning
the remuneration of the Directors is that the amount of
remuneration is determined by reference to the relevant
Director’s experience, responsibilities, workload and time
devoted to the Group. The Group has adopted incentive
bonus schemes and continues to maintain these schemes
in order to align the financial well-being of the Group with
that of the employees, and to retain the Directors and
staff of high caliber.

The Company established a nomination committee on 20
January 2014 with written terms of reference in
compliance with code provision A.5 of the CG Code. The
nomination committee consists of three members, the
majority of whom are independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Cheng Wai Tak, who serves as the
chairman of the nomination committee, Mr. Wong Yik
Chung John and Mr. Li Shui Yan.

The primary functions of the nomination committee
include making recommendations to the Board to fill
vacancies on the same, assessing the independence of
independent non-executive Directors and reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board.
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During the year, the nomination committee held one
meeting for, inter alia, reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board and board diversity policy, as
well as discussing matters regarding the retirement and
re-election of Directors and succession planning for
directors and assessment of the independence of
independent non-executive Directors. All the members of
the nomination committee, including Mr. Cheng Wai Tak,
Mr. Wong Yik Chung John and Mr. Li Shui Yan, attended
that meeting.

The Company’s policy for the nomination of Directors (the
“Nomination Policy”) was adopted by the Company
pursuant to Board resolutions. The Nomination Committee
will review the Nomination Policy, as appropriate, to
ensure the effectiveness of the Nomination Policy and will
discuss any revisions that may be required, and
recommend any such revisions to the Board for
consideration and approval. The Nomination Policy is set
out as follows:

This policy sets out the criteria and procedures to
be adopted when considering candidates to be
appointed or re-elected as Directors.

The Nomination Committee shall consider the
following criteria in evaluating and selecting
candidates for directorship:

° Character and integrity;
o Qualifications including professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience

that are relevant to the Company’s business
and corporate strategy;
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Willingness to devote adequate time to
discharge duties as a member of the Board;

Board Diversity Policy and any measurable
objectives adopted for achieving diversity on
the Board;

Requirement for the Board to have independent
non-executive directors in accordance with the
GEM Listing Rules and whether the
candidates would be considered independent
with reference to the independence guidelines
set out in the GEM Listing Rules; and

Such other perspectives as are appropriate to
the Company’s business or as suggested by
the Board.

3.1.1 The Nomination Committee reviews the
structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board periodically and
makes recommendation on any
proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate
strategy;

3.1.2 When it is necessary to fill a causal
vacancy or appoint an additional
director, the Nomination Committee
identifies or selects candidates
recommended to the Committee, with or
without assistance from external
agencies or the Company, pursuant to
the “Nomination Criteria” set out above;

3.1.3 If the process vyields one or more
desirable candidates, the Nomination
Committee shall rank them by order of
preference based on the needs of the
Company and reference check of each
candidate (where applicable);
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3.1.4 The Nomination Committee makes

recommendation to the Board including
the terms and conditions of the
appointment; and

3.1.5 The Board deliberates and decides on the

3.2.1

appointment based upon the
recommendation of the Nomination
Committee.

In accordance with the Company’s
articles of association, every director
shall be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years and shall
be eligible for re-election at each annual
general meeting;

3.2.2 The Nomination Committee shall review

the overall contribution and service to the
Company of the retiring director. The
Nomination Committee shall also review
the expertise and professional
qualifications of the retiring director who
offered himself/herself for re-election at
the annual general meeting, to determine
whether such director continues to meet
the “Nomination Criteria” as set out
above; and

3.2.3 Based on the review made by Nomination

Committee, the Board shall make
recommendations to shareholders on
candidates standing for re-election at the
annual general meeting of the Company,
and provide the available biographical
information of the retiring director in
accordance with the GEM Listing Rules
to enable shareholders to make informed
decisions on the re-election of such
candidates at annual general meeting of
the Company.
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The shareholders of the Company may
propose a person for election as a director
in accordance with the Memorandum and
Articles of Association of the Company and
applicable law. For more details, please
refer to the section in Company’s website
“Investor Relations — Corporate governance
— Procedures for shareholders to propose a
person for election as director”.

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the
“Diversity Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve
diversity on the Board. The Company embraces the
benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality
of its performance. Pursuant to the Diversity Policy, the
Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the
consideration of a number of aspects, including (but not
limited to) gender, regional and industry experience, skills,
knowledge and educational background. All appointments
of the Board members will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity of the
Board. The Board will consider setting measurable
objectives to implement the Diversity Policy and review
such objectives from time to time to ensure its
appropriateness and ascertain the progress made towards
achieving those objectives. Current Board members have
varied educational backgrounds and expertises, diverse
perspectives and competencies in areas which are
relevant and valuable to the Group, including accounting,
corporate finance, strategic planning, business
development and management.

The nomination committee will review the Diversity Policy,
as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.
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The Company’s corporate governance function is carried
out by the Board pursuant to a set of written terms of
reference adopted by the Board, which include (a)
developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and making
recommendations to the Board; (b) reviewing and
monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management of the
Company and its subsidiaries; (c) reviewing and
monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (d)
developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees
and Directors and its subsidiaries; (e) reviewing the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosures in the corporate governance report of the
Company required to be prepared pursuant to the GEM
Listing Rules; and (f) considering, reviewing and deciding
any other topics as authorised by the Board.

During the year, the Board reviewed and discussed the
corporate governance policy of the Group and was
satisfied with the effectiveness of its corporate
governance policy.

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all
directors shall participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills to ensure their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant.

During the year, the Company provided training materials
for all the Directors to keep them abreast of the latest
development of legal, regulatory and corporate
governance. The Company has received the records of
training from all Directors.

The Group, together with its legal adviser, continuously
update the Directors on the latest developments regarding
the GEM Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements, to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices.
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All Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare
the Group’s consolidated financial statements for each
financial period to give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows for
that period. The Directors continue to adopt the going
concern approach in preparing the consolidated financial
statements and are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

The responsibilities of the external auditors in financial
reporting are set out in the independent auditor’s report
attached to the Company’s financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2018 in this annual report.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the remuneration
paid or payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers in respect of
audit and non-audit services provided is set out below:
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Remuneration

Services rendered paid/payable
P 42 14t AR 7% B EAHE
HK$’000
FET
Audit services Ei IR 1,500
Non-audit services EEFT R 86
Total st 1,586
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The Board acknowledges its responsibility to maintain an
effective risk management and internal control systems in
order to safeguard the Group’s assets and investments
and the shareholders’ interest. The Board oversees the
overall risk management of the Group and endeavors to
identify, control impact of the identified risks and facilitate
implementation of coordinated mitigating measures. Such
internal control systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Group has established a risk management policy
setting out the process of identification, evaluation and
management of the principal risks affecting the business.
Each division is responsible for identifying, assessing and
managing risks within its divisions, identifying and
assessing the principal risks on a quarterly basis with
mitigation plans to manage those risks. The management
is responsible for overseeing the risk management and
internal control activities of the Group, attending quarterly
meetings with each divisions to ensure principal risks are
properly managed and new or changing risks are
identified and documented. Lastly, the Board is
responsible for reviewing and approving the effectiveness
and adequacy of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems.

The risk management framework, coupled with the
Group’s internal controls, ensures that the risks
associated with different divisions are effectively controlled
in line with the Group’s risk appetite.

The risk management report was submitted to the audit
committee and the Board for review.
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The Group does not have an internal audit function within
itself. Nevertheless the Company engaged an external
consultant, CT Partners Consultants Limited to carry out
internal audit function and had during the year conducted
review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems. The review
covered, inter alia, the purchase cycle, payment cycle and
account payable over trading of display products and
optics products, and the external consultant made
recommendations for improving the Group’s internal
control system. The internal control review report was
submitted to the audit committee and the Board for
review. The audit committee has requested the
management to follow up with the recommendations of
the external consultant to remedy control issues identified
and to further improve the Group’s internal control
system.

The Board has the overall responsibility to maintain the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programs and budget of accounting
and financial reporting functions. After having conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems, the Board has reached the
conclusion that the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems were in place and effective. The Board
will review and assess the risk management and internal
control systems at least once a year. The Company has
established a whistle-blowing policy and system for
employees of the Group to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control and
other matters. No significant areas of concern that may
affect the financial, operational, compliance, controls and
risk management of the Group have been identified.

With respect to the monitoring and disclosure of inside
information, the Company has adopted a policy on
disclosure of inside information, with an aim to ensure
that the insiders abide by the confidentiality requirement
and fulfill the disclosure obligation of inside information.
The policy describes clearly the decision trees to identify
inside information and take necessary actions. Employees
and other relevant parties are required to keep inside
information in strict confidence. The Group is committed
to ensure that information contained in announcements
are not false or misleading, or false or misleading through
omission of a material fact in view of presenting
information in a clear and balanced way, which requires
equal disclosure of both positive and negative facts.
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The Company aims to provide its shareholders and
investors with high standards of disclosure and financial
transparency. The Board is committed to providing clear
and detailed information of the Group to its shareholders
in a timely manner and on a regular basis, through the
publication of quarterly, interim and annual reports and/or
dispatching circulars, notices, and other announcements.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the Board and the Company’s
shareholders. The Chairman of the Board and other
members of the respective committees are available to
answer questions from the shareholders at the general
meeting. The Company recognises the importance of
maintaining on-going communications with the
shareholders and encourages them to attend general
meetings to stay informed of the Group’s businesses and
convey any concerns they may have to the Directors and
senior management.

The Company maintains a website at
http://www.perfect-optronics.com where extensive
information and updates on the Company’s financial
information, corporate governance practices and other
useful information are posted and available for access by
the public investors.

At the annual general meeting held in 2018, separate
resolutions were proposed by the chairman in respect of
each separate issue, including the re-election of directors
and voted by way of poll. The Company announced the
results of the poll in the manner prescribed under the
GEM Listing Rules. The respective chairman of the Board,
audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee attended the annual general meeting held in
2018 to ensure effective communication with
shareholders. All Directors attended the annual general
meeting held in 2018.
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Pursuant to Article 64 of the articles of association of the
Company, the Board may, whenever it thinks fit, convene
an extraordinary general meeting. Extraordinary general
meetings shall also be convened on the requisition of one
or more shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of
the requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company with voting rights in the general
meetings attached thereto. Such requisition shall be made
in writing to the Board or the company secretary of the
Company (the “Company Secretary”) for the purpose of
requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within 2
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21
days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to
the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Article 113 of the articles of association of the Company
provides that no person other than a retiring Director,
shall, unless recommended by the Board for election, be
eligible for election to the office of Director at any general
meeting, unless notice in writing of the intention to
propose that person for election as a Director and notice
in writing by that person of his willingness to be elected
shall have been lodged at the head office or at the
registered office. The period for lodgment of the notices
required under this Article will commence no earlier than
the day after the despatch of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election and end no later
than 7 days prior to the date of such general meeting
and the minimum length of the period during which such
notices to the Company may be given will be at least 7
days. The written notice must state that person’s
biographical details as required by Rule 17.50(2) of the
GEM Listing Rules. The procedures for shareholders of
the Company to propose a person for election as director
is posted on the Company’s website.
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Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board by addressing them to the Company Secretary
by mail to the principal office of the Company in Hong
Kong. The Company Secretary forwards communications
relating to matters within the Board’s purview to the
Board and communications relating to ordinary business
matters, such as suggestions, inquiries and complaints, to
the Chief Executive Officer.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at
the general meetings of the Company.

The Company Secretary, Mr. Tse Ka Wing (“Mr. Tse”), is
an employee of the Company. He was appointed as an
Executive Director with effect from 26 March 2015. He
reports to the Chairman and is responsible for advising
the Board on corporate governance matters. The
biographical details of Mr. Tse are set out under the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management”.

During the year, Mr. Tse has undertaken not less than 15
hours of relevant professional training in accordance with
Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules.

During the year, there was no change to the Company’s
constitutional documents.

Under the Companies Law of Cayman Islands and the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the
Company, dividends may be paid out of the profits of the
Company, or subject to solvency of the Company, out of
sums standing to the credit of the share premium account
of the Company. However, no dividend shall exceed the
amount recommended by Directors of the Company.

Declaration and recommendation of payment of dividends
of the Company is subject to the approval of the
Directors of the Company, depending on results of
operations, working capital, financial position, future
prospects, and capital requirements, as well as any other
factors which the Directors of the Company may consider
relevant from time to time. Any future declaration,
recommendation and payment of dividends of the
Company may or may not reflect the historical
declarations and payments of dividends and will be at the
absolute discretion of the Directors of the Company. The
Company does not have any predetermined dividend
payout ratio.
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The Group reaffirms its commitment towards measuring,
managing and reporting sustainability. This is the Group’s
third Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”)
report, addressing all relevant material issues and fairly
presents the ESG performance of the Group and its
impacts.

The report aims to be plain, clear and easy-to-read. The
Board of Directors (the “Board”) acknowledges its
responsibility to ensure integrity of the ESG report and
confirms that it has reviewed and approved the report.

This report is prepared in compliance with the ESG
Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 20 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

This report covers all operations of the Group and
describes its initiatives and progress in respect of ESG
aspects for the year from 1 January 2018 to 31
December 2018. Additional information pertaining to our
sustainability performance, including comprehensive
financial information and data, can be found in this annual
report.

The Group is principally engaged in the trading of display
components used in electronic products and the
development and sale of optics products and related
electronic components. The Group also processes some
of the products which it trades through third parties. Its
major environmental impact is the indirect carbon
emissions generated from electricity consumed by its
office and warehouses. Nevertheless, the Group has been
striving hard to conserve energy usage and raise
environmental awareness among its employees.
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To manage its ESG performance more effectively, the
Group has established an ESG working group that reports
to the Board comprising senior management who have
adequate knowledge of both ESG matters and the
Group’s operations.

As the Group is engaged mainly in the trading of display
components, supply chain management plays a significant
role in its business model. We attach importance to
supply chain management, encourage business partners
to share our ESG values and closely monitor their
sustainability performance. In return, we provide
transparency and fairness in our procurement process
and contractual arrangements.

The Group has been engaging with its key stakeholder
groups, including employees, processing service
providers, customers, suppliers, etc. Given the nature of
our business operations, ensuring that suppliers and
processing service providers are socially responsible and
are operating in an ethical manner is critical.

Striving to be a responsible corporate citizen, the Group
has been embedding environmental and social
considerations into its daily operations, as well as
strategic decision-making process. The Group has started
adhering to a well-defined ESG policy since publishing of
its first ESG report in 2017. The ESG policy holistically
covers sustainability issues, enabling the Group to
maximise positive impacts and minimize negative impacts
for its stakeholders.

For employee management, we are devoted to protecting
employees’ rights, providing employees with training for
continuous development and creating a safe and healthy
workplace. As part of the effort to bear our fair share of
social responsibility, we are dedicated to helping
underprivileged children through supporting educational
programmes held by Heep Hong Society".

! Established in 1963, Heep Hong Society is a leading children’s
education and rehabilitation organization committed to helping
children and youth with diverse needs.
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The Group has a wide network of stakeholders, including
shareholders, investors, employees, customers, suppliers,
processing service providers, the government and the
community. We communicate with our stakeholders on an
ongoing basis through different channels and platforms.

Below are the communications channels and topics that

stakeholders are concerned about.

Stakeholders
&

Shareholders/Investors

BRI EE

Employees

7l
il

Customers

BP

Suppliers/Sub-contractors

HER/ HEA

The Government

BT

Community

At [

Key Topics

FTERE

o Corporate governance

° Risk management

° Operations and strategy
s 1XER

o [ B & 32
. &g N R

° Welfare and benefits

° Training and development

° Occupational health and
safety

. &R & A =

. Bk E R

. BERRRZR

° Product responsibility
° Data privacy

e EmAf

s  BEILE

° Product and service quality
° Business ethics

. EmkRBEE

. BEER

° Taxation compliance
° Regulatory compliance

° Business ethics
. M A #H
. EEER

s MAXRER

° Community investment
e HERE

BE HERERRSE
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CEP - fER - TR ER -
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Engagement Channels

BERE

° Annual general meeting
o Corporate reporting

e KRRBFARE
s ERSE

° Reporting channels
° Meetings
° Trainings

. WMERE

. B

. =l

° Grievance channels

. FREFRE

° Regular meetings

. EHEH

° Compliance with laws and
regulations

o Responses to government
policies

o  BTIARFMAM
s  ERBTEE

° Donations
] B
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The Group strives to provide customers with high quality
products and services through maintaining a reliable
supply chain.

The Group sources display components from suppliers
and engages processing services providers to process
some of the products it trades. Hence, a stable and
productive supply chain is the key to the Group’s
success. We have established long-term, stable and
mutually beneficial working relationships with reputable
suppliers to ensure steady supply of high quality and trust
worthy products.

Supplier Selection
Critera

We trade only with suppliers with integrity and goodwill.
Our suppliers are selected according to quoted price,
service, quality and reputation. To maintain high material
safety standards in the procurement process, supplier
agreements are signed with major suppliers which set out
the requirements of product standards and delivery
inspections.

The Group encourages suppliers and processing service
providers to share its values on managing environmental
and social aspects, including environmental protection,
human rights and product responsibility. Most of our
suppliers have established sound social responsibility
systems to incorporate social responsibility into strategies,
management and long-term development goals throughout
the entire process of business operations. Most of them
have widely adopted the [ISO14001 Environmental
Management System, OHSAS18001 Occupational Health
and Safety Management System, ISO9001 Quality
Management System and other relevant international
standards.
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The Group strives to meet customers’ demands and
expectations through maintaining the highest standards of
service and product quality.

To ensure the quality of products provided by suppliers,
our supplier agreements set out our requirements on
product standards and delivery inspection. Suppliers have
to provide product specifications and samples for
inspection. In case of any quality problems, suppliers will
provide replenishment or exchange service after
negotiation. Process contracts are signed with processing
services providers to ensure a high yield of products that
meet our requirements. We also review regularly the
performance of the processing services providers.

We value feedback from customers and provide them with
a grievance channel. In case of any product defects,
responsible personnel record the problem in a complaint
form which lists out the name, application and quantity of
the products, as well as the number of defective
products. After investigation and analysis by the
responsible department, we provide replenishment or
exchange service for customers when applicable.

The Group respects the privacy of its customers and
maintains the highest level of data security and
confidentiality. We operate in full compliance with all
relevant laws and regulations relating to privacy matters
that include the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance and
have clearly communicated our confidentiality requirement
to all employees. Our employees are expected to protect
customer information against improper disclosure, misuse
or unauthorized use, loss, damage or corruption.

During the year, the Group complied with all relevant laws
and regulations relating to health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters concerning products and
services provided, including but not limited to The Trade
Descriptions Ordinance and Product Quality Law of the
People’s Republic of China.
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The Group regards honesty, integrity and fair play as
important principles and has issued strict guidance on
anti-corruption measures. We have set up an Anti-Fraud
Management System which aims to prevent bribery,
blackmail, fraud and money laundering, and hence
strengthen corporate governance and internal control. The
Anti-Fraud Management System is established in
accordance with all relevant laws, industry standards and
guidelines relating to corruption, such as the “Prevention
of Bribery Ordinance” and “The Competition Ordinance”.

The Group’s anti-fraud work is led by the management
and then followed by various departments. The following
table shows the allocation of responsibilities for anti-fraud
measures:

AEERBE RERAEREERA A
BHERARESTHEERES - R KL RF
BEEGE  ABIERE - BR REFERAER
o emmRbXE AR AMER REKE
BHRIENRBAE S RESNMERER 17X
RENFE s - PIandP B RR 15 01D K (Gt 5
fE 1) -

AEBENREEERTFHEEEES I H
EEPIAE - TRINHRMREFEEBHE L
poRGiE

To establish, improve and effectively implement anti-fraud
programmes and controls including fraud risk assessment and

BY MERAUMERRFRSREE  BREFREERMG

To organize and implement anti-fraud measures across

To undertake anti-fraud work in corresponding departments

Management
fraud prevention
° To conduct self-assessment
EEE .
& IEB
o ETEHML
Audit Committee o To guide anti-fraud work
ERERS . ol REFEKIIE
Anti-fraud Department °
departments
° To establish whistle-blowing channels
RE¥EM s HBEERBEIMPFRELREK
e BUBRWREE
Business Units °
EBEMN . MRAEEEFIETT R BRI

Our employees are expected to strictly comply with the
code of conduct which stipulates proper business
practices and prohibited acts, including prohibition of
soliciting advantages and accepting gifts, so as to prevent
damage to interests of the Group and its stakeholders. In
the event of conflict of interest, employees are required to
sign a “Conflict of Interest Declaration Form” and make a
written declaration to the Chief Financial Officer, and then
submit it to the Chief Executive Officer for approval.
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The Group encourages whistleblowing and monitors and
investigates any suspicious acts that involve bribery or
dishonesty. The Anti-fraud Department has set up a
reporting line and a complaint mailbox for staff members
to report any existing or potential breach of the Code of
Conduct. The mechanism provides that all reported cases
are promptly and thoroughly examined while the
information is kept confidential to protect the relevant
parties. Cases are referred to the responsible law
enforcement authorities if criminal offence is found after
investigation.

The Group believes that competition is a cherished value
in Hong Kong and strives to promote a fair competition to
protect the interests of its business partners and
suppliers. We strictly abide by the Competition Ordinance
enacted by the Competition Commission of Hong Kong
and Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the PRC and have
clearly communicated our anti-unfair competition policies
to all employees. The Group has zero tolerance for
misbehaviours which may cause damage to competitors’
goodwill or infringement of competitors’ trade secrets. We
ensure our procurement process is clean, can withstand
probity and is corruption-free.

During the year, we were not aware of any breach of
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering. The Group was not involved in any corruption
case in 2018.

The Group is committed to implementing the best
practices and maintaining good labour relations.
Externally, we are dedicated to helping the
underprivileged through community involvement.
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Our personnel management procedural document clearly
sets out policies on issues related to recruitment,
promotion, compensation, working hours, rest periods,
dismissal, benefits and welfare. The personnel
management procedural document ensures that our
operations strictly abide by relevant labour laws and
regulations, including but not limited to Employment
Ordinance (Chapter 57 of Laws of Hong Kong), Minimum
Wage Ordinance, Labour Law of the PRC, Labour
Contract Law of the PRC and Provisions on the
Prohibition of Using Child Labour. During the year, we did
not come across any incidents of non-compliance with
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group, relating to employment and labour practices.

As at 31 December 2018, there were 72 employees in
total, most of which were in mainland China, accounting
for 65%, with employees in Hong Kong accounting for the
remaining 35%. The ratio of males to females is 64:36.
Most of them (77%) are 31-50 years old.

Geographical distribution
IR 5 1

31PN

35%

Gender profile

BAWASERRF XM EW S M ARRERE -
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EIRCELERETIRE) - FA - HALEME
My REMERERLS IERBEHAEEE
REAFENEELERER -
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BEART2A - KBHREFREAM - (565% M
BTH3B%NATBEL - BANERL A
64:36 © Z 88 T (77%)5E31E508% °

Age profile
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15%

64%

7%

Hong Kong [l Mainland China Male B Female <31 [ 31-50 [ >50
HE lciat:i S g

To attract and retain talents, we provide competitive
remuneration packages and welfare to employees,
including medical benefits, social insurance, provident
fund, bonus and a share option scheme. Our employees’
remuneration packages are reviewed once a year to
ensure that they match the prevailing market standard.
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As an equal opportunity employer, we strive to create a
diverse and inclusive workplace for all employees. We
provide equal opportunities in all aspects of employment
regardless of age, gender, family status, sexual
orientation, ethnicity, creed and religion or other
characteristics. The Group has zero tolerance to any form
of harassment and discrimination and has developed a
code of conduct for employees to reinforce their
awareness in this regard. Any employee who becomes
aware of any existing or potential breach of the code is
encouraged to report promptly to the designated
department through the reporting channels.

While the Group does not have operations in locations
where child labour risk is relatively high, we work with our
suppliers and processing service providers to ensure there
is no forced labor or child labor working in their
production facilities. During the year, the Group did not
receive any reports relating to recruitment of child or
forced labour.

In addition to creating value and profit for the company,
we hope our employees are able to realize their full
potential. We aim to provide opportunities for the
employees to develop job-related knowledge and skills.
Internal training programmes are arranged for employees
to improve technical understanding of products and hence
promote our sales performance.

The nature of our office-based operations does not
involve activities that cause high risk of occupational
hazards. Nevertheless, the Group is committed to
maintaining a healthy and safe working environment for its
employees.

Our code of conduct stipulates that smoking and drinking
are prohibited in office and warehouse to ensure a safe
working area. We strictly comply with all occupational
safety related laws and regulations, including the
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance, Employees’
Compensation Ordinance, and Law of the PRC on the
Prevention and Treatment of Occupational Disease. During
the year, the Group was not aware of any incidents of
non-compliance with laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group, relating to providing a
safe working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.
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The Group strives to create positive impacts to the local
community. We support activities that the community
values and encourage our employees to take part in
those activities. Since 2017, the Group has been
sponsoring the Heep Hong Society to assist children and
youth with special educational needs.

In 2018, the Group donated HK$100,000 to Heep Hong
Society to arrange a series of educational programmes for
children from low-income families. We are glad to be part
of this initiative to collaboratively create a better tomorrow
for children and youth with diverse needs.

The Group was awarded the Caring Company Logo from
the Hong Kong Council of Social Service (HKCSS) in
March 2019 in recognition of our achievements in the
Caring Company Scheme as well as our commitment in
caring for the community, employees and the environment
in 2018. Looking forward, we will continue to engage in
communities where we operate and explore more
opportunities to contribute.

The most significant environmental impact of our
operations is carbon emissions generated from the energy
consumption at office premises and by vehicles. Although
the Group has relatively limited environmental impact
generated from its operations, we strive to bear our fair
share of environmental responsibility to tackle climate
change and landfill overload issue by conducting our
business in an environmentally responsible manner and
adopting the same management approach along our
supply chain.

Our environmental management policy ensures the Group
complies with all environmental laws and regulations,
including Air Pollution Control Ordinance, Ozone Layer
Protection Ordinance, Water Pollution Control Ordinance,
Waste Disposal Ordinance, the Law of the PRC on the
Prevention and Control of Air Pollution, the Law of the
PRC on the Prevention and Control of Water Pollution, the
Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution of Solid Waste, and the
Environmental Protection Law.
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Environmenta

During the year, the Group was not aware of any
incidents of non-compliance with laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Group, relating to air
and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and
land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste.

Resources Consumption

The major types of resources consumed by the Group’s
daily operations are electricity, gasoline and water. In
2018, the gasoline used by private vehicles and electricity
consumed by office premises were 22,268 litres and
159,033 kWh, respectively. The energy intensity was 347
MJ per m?.

Total Energy Consumption (MJ) and
Energy Intensity (MJ/m?)
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, Social and Governance Report
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Our total water consumption was 548 tonnes and the
water intensity was 0.31 tonnes per m?. There was no
issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose.

Total Water Consumption (tonnes)
and Water Intensity (tonnes/m?)
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The Group’s operations do not involve any material use of
packaging material.

Emissions

Total Amount of GHG Emission (tCO.e)
and Emission Intensity (tCO,e/m?)
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The Group’s greenhouse gases (GHG) emissions include
direct emissions (Scope I) from gasoline used and indirect
emissions (Scope Il) from electricity consumption. In 2018,
our total GHG emissions amounted to 143 tonnes of
carbon dioxide equivalent (tCO,e). Emission intensity was
computed as 0.04 tCO2e per m?.

Total Amount of Air Pollutant
Emission (kg)
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The sulphur oxides (SOx), nitrogen oxides (NOx) and
particulate matters (PM) emissions from private vehicles
were 0.3 kg, 12.7 kg and 0.9 kg, respectively. Due to our
operations being office-based, the Group mainly generates
office garbage which is handled by management office.
Our operations do not generate any hazardous waste.
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Let's QL)
%%53‘5§f§1

The Group has been participating in the green office
initiative, “Let’s GO”, since last year, aiming to incorporate
green office habits into the Group’s daily operations.
Based on certain simple yet effective assessments, the
scheme requires pledges from employees to create a
greener workplace and follow the green office guidelines,
thus induces behavioral change and reduces
environmental footprint of the office.

During the vyear, the Group has adopted the following
resources conservation and energy saving practices in
office premises:

AEBBEFR2EGERAETE —[4E
ZH] EEBKERAEBTERALAEENA
FEEZT - REGEAERNTGE  FFEER
BEAFBEENSZENTHERRELERRE
WMAEES  EMBBTRAREBLRIBAE
BRI R B o

FR AEECERRERBATERBLOR

BN BE ¥ I

Energy Saving

BEREF 40
Air-Conditioning Lighting Office Equipment
RREAK RPARR WAERE
° Switch off air conditioning ° Switch off lights when not ° Switch off equipment when not
system when not in use in use in use
° Maintain the indoor temperature ° Use switch-sockets to avoid
at 25.5°C redundant energy use
o Clean air conditioners o Purchase office equipment
periodically with high grades of energy
efficiency labels
. 8 R I B 4 2 SR . NMERK R EE . NE R BEERE
. HRFENRER25.5C o (AR ELARSZHRERE
s TEHBERLAM TROE
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Resources Conservation

BE HERERRSE

EREH
Paper Plastic WEEE? Water Miscellaneous
R BE BEEHEK K& IR HAth
ka1
Assign Provide ° Purchase ° Ensure no Recycle used
designated sufficient multi-function leaky taps in ink/toner
area for paper reusable devices, such the office cartridge
recycling tableware to as printing, Use web-
Use electronic avoid scanning, conferencing
supporting disposable photocopy, to minimize
medium to utensils fax business trips
reduce printing Reuse
Make available stationeries
collection tray Design
for waste copy publications
paper used on with fewer
one side next to varnishes and
printers coatings
fEE R AE RETHNA o  HEZINEER o BRPAER 51 1 {55 AR 38 &Y
A 9R [ U BEREERE & T E IKBEEE P IRK B/ HHE
TREFXE B -malzE W B AR e
RO AT R E = = RARE
£ R A 7 7S i
TEIRENE 17
S A AR BERAXA
5] U A2 JEFFERABRD
SR AL
T

The Group’s environmental policy
commitment towards green procurement, which means we

stipulates its

Att [pE—

I SN

AEEORTHRD AR E &SRB A
KEMERRAEERDREBRK

ensure all our products are sourced from suppliers that
share our values on mitigating environmental impacts.

The Group has established stable and long-term business
relationships with environmentally responsible processing
service providers for over ten years. By maintaining close
communication with suppliers, we are able to monitor
their environmental compliance levels.

Our major suppliers have obtained certifications of
ISO14001 Environmental Management System and
ISO15001 Energy Management System. They have
embedded environmental protection concept in the stage
of product design, and constantly improved the energy
efficiency of its products and reduced GHG emissions in
the stage of use through technological innovation.

2 Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment

RERFEREREZETEREEBRNHER -

TZ2EX AKEEERROMNTRE HERD
BUYBRERRHANEHRAG BARHKERHR
SEUBE  RPIEHERERRERKFE-

MM EBHERC ESISO140013REE 2
ZRISO150018E RERERZRF - MEE®
AR ARRKRES  UBBARMAEIHTEH
ReEMMNERNGE  REREERSEHANR
EREHR -

2 fEE E 22 N E T R B (Waste Electrical and Electronic

Equipment)
2018 4 3R
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For its processing services providers, the Group has
established internal control measures to monitor their
environmental compliance, ensuring that they have
registered with the relevant environmental protection
authority in accordance with the PRC laws and have
obtained a special license before commencing operations.
The Group also undertakes regular site visits to check if
the processing services providers’ facilities meet our
required environmental standards.

BRI TIRBHERMS  AKRECRHEANME
BERE NERERRAABL BRAEME
REFBAEABERERFRAMBIFIZRL - LEFRS

EERRGRERER NEBE I EHETE M

CAREMTIRGHEINRERES N A

17 FF Bk 0 BB AR B

Unit 2018 2017
B —E-N\F Z—E—tH
Workforce Total Headcount BETHAY
Demographics By Geographical =i @ &
Distribution
EEAO&KS Hong Kong B 25 30
Mainland China MR B A 47 68
Total it 72 98
By Age REWRE D
<31 <31 11 19
31-50 31-50 55 73
>50 >50 6 6
By Gender 1% B &l
Male EERes 46 67
Female peg i 26 31
Environment Total Resources EREREE
Consumption
RiE Electricity BN kWh 159,033 118,609
T R
Gasoline ;i litres 22,268 23,682
NI
Tap Water SR tonnes 548 519
M
Intensity ZE
Energy REIR MJ/m? 347 408
KEHE
Tap Water SN tonne/m? 0.31 0.55
Wg 75 oK
Emissions BERE
Sulphur Oxides (SOx) 7 &1k ¥1(SOx) kg AT 0.3 0.3
Nitrogen Oxides (NOx) & 4.1b#1(NOx) kg AT 12.7 12.3
Particulate Matters (PM) & % ik ¥ (PM) kg AT 0.9 0.9
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Unit 2018 2017
B —B-N\F —B—+#F

Greenhouse Gases BRERBHERE
Emissions
Total GHG emissions )& = R 88 tCO,e 143 126
e Wi — &
ks &
Scope | &E— tCO,e 59 63
WE — 4|
b E &
Scope I BE— tCO,e 84 63
WE =&
b E &
Intensity BE
GHG emissions BERE tCO,e/m? 0.04 0.04
g W~ &
g &
F 255K
KPIs HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
BEERBIARE
HEERERS HERERABREEIER EEHH
A. Environmental ARE
Aspect A1 Emissions
[E mA1 By
General disclosure Information on: Environmental Management
— MR E ()  the policies; and BREERE

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,

discharges into water and land, and generation of

hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

ARBERMAEREIN  MARLHAHES BER

BEBERMMELSN:
@ BX:X
b BETFHETAREAZENHEBERZLAN
M &R
KPI' A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Environmental Management —
Emissions
B3 AR IRAL R BREREBEREE- REEHE — B
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KPlIs

HRERENER

KPI' A1.2

BB IEIRAL.2

KPI A1.3

BRERIERALS

KPI A1.4

BB AUEIRA14

KPI A1.5
BB A MIETR A15

KPI A1.6

BRENIEIE A16

Aspect A2
EEA2

General disclosure
—REE

KPI A2.1

RSB AUEIT A21

KPI' A2.2

B AR A2.2

KPI A2.3

HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements
BEBBIARE
HERERABREEIER

Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and,
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
RERBANME UM E) R
EEEM BERBTE) -

(Em) BE (AE

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
MEEEERENES (VAEGTHE)
WBEEEM BERBTE) -

E(miER) % E (|

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and,
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
ESBREREZEMAE CANEGE) R
WBEEEM BERMTE) -

(@Em) =& (n

Description of measures to mitigate emissions and
results achieved.

WA EERENERRIABAR -

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes are handled, reduction initiatives and results
achieved.
HREREREREZREENNGE
M RETERR -

MEELENE

Use of Resources

ERER

Policies on the efficient use of resources,
energy, water and other raw materials.

BRERER(BIEER K REMERME) OBR

including

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g.

electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in ’'000s) and

intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per

facility).

RENEASHERER/KEEER(NE - RIh) &

%%;(LAHFFEETJ%)&Mf(ZZDLAtFEEfﬁ\
RIETE)

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit
of production volume, per facility).
BREKEBREEWMNESESEN BERBTH) -

Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and

Section/Remarks
8- Fid

Environmental Management
Emissions

REEE — B

Environmental Management
Emissions
REEE — #N

Environmental Management
Emissions

REEE — B

Environmental Management

Implementing Green Office Scheme

REEE - EMRERAENE

Environmental Management —

Implementing Green Office Scheme

REE - BRGERR

S

Environmental Management

RRER

~ B
INER

Environmental Management —

Resources Consumption

REEE — BRER

RIR

Environmental Management —

Resources Consumption
REEE — ERER

Environmental Management —

results achieved.
Hiee R FEABSAERBERER -

Implementing Green Office Scheme

BRENIEIE A23 REEE - ERERAEHE
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KPlIs

HRERENER

KPI A2.4

BREAUEIT A24

KPI A2.5

B A MR A25

Aspect A3

BE A3

General disclosure
—RBE

KPI A3.1

BB AUE 1R A3

B. Social

B.iE

Aspect B1
[E EB1

General disclosure
—M =

HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements
BEBBIARE
HERERABREEIER

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing
water that is fit for the purpose, water efficiency
initiatives and results achieved.

i 3t Sk BUE A ZKOR Erl BRI R - AR A KR
At Bl RPATERR

Total packaging materials used for finished products (in
tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit
produced.

AR mAAeENENBE U E) R(NER)S
EEEBMEE-

The Environment and Natural Resources

BRERARER

Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impact on
the environment and natural resources.

BEZETAERERAREREREAT EOHK -

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources and the actions
taken to manage them.
HWAEBEHHRRRRAERNEATEREZ KR
EERBTENTD -

Employment

ER®

Information on:

(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

related to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and

promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal

opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other

benefits and welfare.

BRFMEkEE BEREHA IR BRHE F5

e 2ot REGUEREMSFBEREND

@ BE: R

b) BIEBTABERZENHBERZLAM

B &R} o

BE HERERRSE

Section/Remarks

EE B

Environmental Management —
Resources Consumption; Implementing
Green Office Scheme

REEHE — Bl EtE

Environmental Management —
Resources Consumption

REEE — BRHER

Environmental Management
RIZER

Environmental Management —
Maintaining a Green Supply Chain

REEE - #RFReftEs

Our People — Talent Management
HMMBELI — ATEE
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KPIs
ARANER
KPI B1.1

BB AR R B1.1

Aspect B2
B B2

General disclosure
—REE

Aspect B3
EmE B3

General disclosure

—REE

Aspect B4
[E EB4

General disclosure
—REE

Aspect B5
B B5

General disclosure

— R E

HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements
EBBIABRE
HERERABEEIIER

Total workforce by gender, age group and geographical
region.

mIER - FRAMNRERE D NESLH -

Health and Safety
REEZ2

Information on:

(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and

protecting employees from occupational hazards.

FARHEZ2TERERREEEHEBELE

=30

@@ BER: R

b ETFHETAREAZENEBEEZLAN

& H o

Development and Training

BREREN

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills
for discharging duties at work. Description of training
activities.
FARMTEERTIERENMBRRENEE - #
MIBFES -

Labour Standards
ST

Information on:

(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

BEMIEET REH4 T

@ BE X

b ETFHETAREAZENHEBEERA

6 & Hf o

Supply Chain Management
HEEEE

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of
the supply chain.
ERUEENREIAERREE -

Annual Report 2018

Section/Remarks
=4 1
Our People — Employee Composition

BRMOHET — EEAK

Our People — Occupational
Health and Safety
BMHWET — BEREELS

Our People — Training and
Development

BRAMEL — FHIRER

Our People — Talent Management

HMOET — ATER

Lawful Operation — Supply Chain
Management
BERE — HERER



KPlIs

HRERENER

Aspect B6
[E EB6

General disclosure

—RIE

KPI B6.4
FRIEMIER B6.4
KPI B6.5

BREMIER B6S

Aspect B7
EmEmB7

General disclosure
— M &

KPI B7.1

BREMIER BT A

HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements
BEBBIARE
HERERABREEIER

Product Responsibility
EmEME

Information on:

(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and

privacy matters relating to products and services

provided and methods of redress.

BUFMREERNBENRERL S B BERRL
B RO R R R
@ BE:R

b EFHEGABEAFENEEELREN
AR -

Description of quality assurance process and recall
procedures.

HiEERTBRERERDKIERF

Description of consumer data protection and privacy
policies, how they are implemented and monitored.
HUEEE B RERDLBEE  UREERTRE
RAEe

Anti-Corruption
RES

Information on:

(@  the policies; and

(o)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money

laundering.
BRBLEBE PR BFROAREN:
@ BE:R

b EFHEGABEAFEHEEARREN
HER -

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt
practices brought against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the outcomes of the
cases.
EESBAANEETASHEESRETEELENETH
DRRGOEE RFAER -

BE HERERRSE

Section/Remarks

EE B

Lawful Operation — Product
Responsibility
BERE - EmEfR

Lawful Operation — Product
Responsibility
REKE —EmET

Lawful Operation — Product

Responsibility
RERE —EmEH

Lawful Operation — Anti-corruption
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KPIs HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
BEBBIARE

HEERER HERERABREEIER B HH

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing Lawful Operation — Anti-corruption

procedures, how they are implemented and monitored.
BMRBEMIEZE BT HADHEBRREREF URBHERATRERAE GEAKLE — RES

Aspect B8 Community Investment
[ mBS HERE
General disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the Our People — Community

needs of the communities where the issuer operates Involvement
and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.
—RRE FHEUAHBR2ERTRELEMEHRTENRRARX FMNET — HER2E
BESEZRMEME K o

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, Our People — Community
environmental concerns, labour needs, health, culture, Involvement
sport).

BREWIEEZE B FrEpEE(HE BREE - EMWET — B2 H

BIHFK RE Xt BF) -

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus Our People — Community
area. Involvement
BREAMIEE B2 HAHEIHEMPAER(WEELARKM) - ZMNET - HR2E
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Mr. Cheng Wai Tak, aged 49, was appointed as director
of the Company on 13 June 2013. He is the Chairman,
Chief Executive Officer and executive Director of the
Company. He is also the chairman of the Nomination
Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. Cheng is also a founder
of the Group. He has been in the business of trading
TFT-LCD components for over 15 years and has
established close relationships with various suppliers. He
is responsible for formulating the Group’s overall strategic
planning and development, and management of the
Group’s business. He graduated from Hong Kong Baptist
University with a bachelor of science in combined
sciences in mathematical science degree. Save as
disclosed above, Mr. Cheng is also a director of certain of
the Group’s subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong, the
British Virgin Islands, Samoa and Taiwan.

Mr. Liu Ka Wing, aged 46, was appointed as an executive
Director of the Company on 18 June 2013. He joined the
Group in November 2008. He is responsible for
overseeing the Group’s administrative functions and
compliance issue; and assisting in the management of the
Group’s business. Mr. Liu has about 24 vyears of
experience in accounting. Prior to joining the Group, he
worked in various certified public accountants firm and
corporations, responsible for general accounting functions.
Mr. Liu is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Group.

Mr. Tse Ka Wing, aged 43, joined the Group in May 2013
and is the Company Secretary and Chief Financial Officer
of the Company. He was appointed as an executive
Director with effect from 26 March 2015. He is primarily
responsible for the financial management, supervision of
financial reporting and corporate finance matters of the
Group. Mr. Tse graduated from The Chinese University of
Hong Kong with a bachelor of business administration
degree. He is an associate of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Tse is
a professional accountant with over 21 years of
experience in accounting and had previously served as a
senior manager of an international firm of certified public
accountants.
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Mr. Wong Yik Chung John, aged 52, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company on
20 January 2014 and is responsible for providing
independent judgment on issues of strategy, performance,
resources and standard of conduct of the Company.

He is also the chairman of the Audit Committee and a
member of the Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. Wong graduated from
the University of Melbourne, Australia with a degree of
bachelor of commerce. He was a member of the
Australian Society of Certified Practising Accountants and
was admitted as an associate of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants in April 1997. Mr. Wong
has more than 29 years of experience in auditing and
corporate finance work. Over the past three years, he
served as independent non-executive directors for the
following companies listed on () the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, namely Yang Guang Co. Ltd (stock code:
000608); and (i) the Stock Exchange, namely Kee
Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 2011) and Ascent
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 264). He is
currently serving as an independent non-executive director
for the following companies which are listed on the Stock
Exchange, namely EcoGreen International Group Limited
(stock code: 2341), LongiTech Smart Energy Holding
Limited (stock code: 1281) and Beijing Capital Land Ltd.
(stock code: 2868).
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Mr. Wong Chi Chiu, aged 48, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company on
20 January 2014 and is responsible for providing
independent judgment on issues of strategy, performance,
resources and standard of conduct of the Company. He
is also the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and
a member of the Audit Committee of the Company. Mr.
Wong graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University with a degree of bachelor of engineering in
electrical engineering. He further received his master of
science in engineering (building services engineering)
degree from The University of Hong Kong. Mr. Wong was
registered as a chartered engineer (CEng) at the
Engineering Council in April 1998 and was registered as a
registered professional engineer in electrical discipline at
the Engineers Registration Board in July 1999. He has
been a member of The Institution of Engineering and
Technology since February 1998 and the Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers since May 1998. Mr. Wong has
over 26 years of experience in the engineering industry.

Mr. Li Shui Yan, aged 49, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company on
20 January 2014 and is responsible for providing
independent judgment on issues of strategy, performance,
resources and standard of conduct of the Company. He
is also a member of the Audit Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company. Mr. Li graduated from
National Chengchi University in Taiwan with a degree of
bachelor of business administration. Mr. Li has more than
21 years of experience in corporate finance. Currently, he
is the managing director of Dakin Capital Limited, a
licensed corporation to carry out type 6 (advising on
corporate finance) regulated activity under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong.

Note: The executive Directors are also the senior management of the
Company.
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The Directors of the Company present their report
together with the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as
an exempted company with limited liability on 13 June
2013 under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.
The Company’s shares were listed on the GEM (“GEM”) of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 7 February 2014 (the “Listing Date”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set
out in Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.
There were no significant changes in the nature of the
Group’s principal activities during the year.

Business review of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018 as required by Schedule 5 to the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, including a description of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group and an
indication of likely future development in the Group’s
business, can be found in the Management Discussion
and Analysis set out on pages 7 to 22 of this annual
report which forms part of this directors’ report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by

operating segment is set out in Note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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To help conserve the environment, the Group has
implemented policies to encourage its employees for the
efficient use of energy and resources. Besides, the Group
has internal control measures in place to ensure that its
processing service providers comply with the relevant
environmental laws and regulations.

In addition, details regarding the Group’s environmental
policies and performance can be found in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report set out on
pages 43 to 64 of this annual report.

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) do
not recommend the payment of a dividend (2017: Nil) for
the year ended 31 December 2018.

There were no movements in the Company’s share capital
during the year.

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December
2018 amounted to approximately HK$480,057,000 (2017:
HK$480,153,000).

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during
the year amounted to HK$100,000 (2017: HK$200,000).
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There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association and there was no
restriction against such rights under the laws of Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities
and non-controlling interests of the Group, as extracted
from the consolidated financial statements of the
Company for the years ended 31 December 2014, 31
December 2015, 31 December 2016, 31 December 2017
and 31 December 2018, is set out on page 184 of the
annual report. This summary does not form part of the
audited financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company
did not redeem any of its shares, and neither did the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchase or sell any
of the Company’s shares.

The Company has a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) which was approved and adopted
pursuant to the written resolutions of the sole
Shareholder passed on 20 January 2014 (the “Adoption
Date”). The following is a summary of the principal terms
of the Share Option Scheme. The terms of the Share
Option Scheme are in accordance with the provisions of
Chapter 23 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the GEM (the “GEM Listing Rules”).

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to
provide the Company with a flexible means of giving
incentive to, rewarding, remunerating, compensating
and/or providing benefits to the Participants (as
defined below) and for such other purposes as the
Board may approve from time to time.
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On and subject to the terms of the Share Option
Scheme and the requirements of the GEM Listing
Rules, the Board may, at its discretion, invite:

(i) any director of each member of the Group or
of any entity in which any member of the
Group holds any equity interest (“Invested
Entity”);

(i) any employee (whether full-time or part-time) of
each member of the Group or of any Invested
Entity (the “Employee”);

(i) any discretionary objects of a discretionary trust
established by any Employee or any director
of each member of the Group or of any
Invested Entity;

(iv) a company beneficially owned by any Employee
or any director of each member of the Group
or of any Invested Entity;

(v)  any consultant, professional and other adviser
to each member of the Group or any Invested
Entity (including their employees or executives
or any persons, firms or companies proposed
to be appointed for providing such services);

(vi) any chief executives or substantial shareholders
of the Company;

(vi) any supplier, customer, service provider,
business or joint venture partner, contractor,
of the Group or any Invested Entity; and

(viii) any person who, at the absolute discretion of
the Board, has contributed or may contribute
to the Group or any Invested Entity, provided
that the Board may at its absolute discretion
determine whether or not one falls within the
above categories,
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(together, the “Participants” and each a
“Participant”), to take up share options to subscribe
for shares of the Company at a price determined in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme.

In determining the basis of eligibility of each
Participant, the Board would take into account such
factors as the Board may at its discretion consider
appropriate.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and
effective for a period of 10 years commencing on
the Adoption Date.

The period as the Board may in its absolute
discretion determine and specify in relation to any
particular option holder in his option agreement
during which the option may be exercised (subject
to such restriction on exercisability specified therein),
which shall be not greater than the period
prescribed by the GEM Listing Rules from time to
time (which is, as at the date of adoption of the
Share Option Scheme, a period of 10 years from the
date of the granting of the option).

The offer of a grant of share options may be
accepted within the period from the date on which
such offer is made by the Board in accordance with
the Share Option Scheme to such date as the
Board may determine and specify in the letter where
such offer is made to a Participant in such form as
the Board may from time to time determine, upon
payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total
by the grantee.
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The subscription price in respect of each Share
issued pursuant to the exercise of options granted
hereunder shall be a price solely determined by the
Board and notified to a Participant and shall be at
least the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on
the date of offer, which must be a business
day;

(i) a price being the average of the closing price
of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5
business days immediately preceding the date
of offer; and

(i) the nominal value of a Share.

The total number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company shall not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in issue
immediately following completion of the Placing and
the Capitalisation Issue (as defined in the
Prospectus of the Company dated 24 January
2014) (being 132,000,000 Shares). The Company
may renew this limit at any time, subject to
shareholders’ approval and the issue of a circular
and in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules
provided that the number of shares to be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under all the share option
schemes does not exceed 30% of the shares in
issue from time to time.

As at the date of this report, the Company had
132,000,000 share options available to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme, which represented
approximately 8.9% of the Company’s shares in
issue as at that date.
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The total number of Shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to each
Participant under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company
(including both exercised and outstanding Options)
in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the
total number of Shares in issue. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to
any of their respective associates, are subject to
approval in advance by the independent non-
executive Directors. In addition, any share options
granted to a substantial Shareholder or an
independent non-executive Director of the
Company, or to any of their respective associates,
in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based
on the price of the Company’s shares at the date of
grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’
approval in advance in a general meeting.

No share option has been granted under the Share
Option Scheme since its adoption.

Save as the Share Option Scheme, at no time during the
year was the Company, its parent company, or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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The directors of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Cheng Wai Tak (Chairman)
Mr. Liu Ka Wing

Mr. Tse Ka Wing

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Wong Yik Chung John

Mr. Wong Chi Chiu

Mr. Li Shui Yan

By virtue of article 108 of the articles of association of the
Company, Mr. Liu Ka Wing and Mr. Wong Yik Chung
John will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. Mr. Liu Ka Wing and Mr. Wong Yik
Chung John will, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

The Company has received annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-
executive Directors pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM
Listing Rules. As at the date of this report, the Board
considers them to be independent.

Except for the service contract with Mr. Tse Ka Wing
which commenced on 26 March 2015, each of the
executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of three years commencing
on the Listing Date except terminated by either party
giving not less than three months’ prior written notice to
the other. The service contracts with Mr. Cheng Wai Tak
and Mr. Liu Ka Wing are renewed for a term of three
years commencing on 7 February 2017. They are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the Company’s
annual general meeting in accordance with the
Company’s articles of association.
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Each of the independent non-executive Directors has
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for
a term of three years commencing on the Listing Date,
except terminated by not less than three months’ notice
in writing served by either party on the other. They are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
Company’s annual general meeting. The aforementioned
appointments are renewed for a term of three years
commencing on 7 February 2017.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable
within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

In order to attract and retain high quality staff and to
enable smooth operation within the Group, the Group
offers competitive remuneration packages (with reference
to market conditions and individual qualifications and
experience) and various in-house training courses. The
remuneration packages are subject to review on a regular
basis.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the
remuneration committee of the Company, having regard to
the Group’s operating results, market competitiveness,
individual performance and achievement, to the Board for
determination.

Details of the Directors’ remuneration and the five highest
paid individuals are set out in Note 33 and Note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company, any of its subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or its
parent company was a party and in which a director of
the Company or his connected entities had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.
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Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association, every
director of the Company shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all
losses or liabilities which he may sustain or incur in or
about the execution of the duties of his office or
otherwise in relation thereto. The Company maintains
directors and officers liability insurance, which gives
appropriate cover for any legal action brought against its
directors. The level of the coverage is reviewed annually.

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior
management are set out on pages 65 to 67 of the annual
report.

During the year, there was no material breach of or non-
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by
the Group.

Based on the information available to the Company and
within the knowledge and belief of the Directors, none of
the Directors or the controlling shareholders of the
Company (as defined under the GEM Listing Rules) have
any business or interest which competes or may compete
with the business of the Group, or have any other conflict
of interest which any such person has or may have with
the Group throughout the year ended 31 December
2018.
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As at 31 December 2018, interests and short positions in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”)) held by the Directors and chief
executives of the Company which have been notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which were taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO) or have been
entered in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise have
been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the standard of dealings by directors set out
in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules were as
follows:

Name of Director Capacity

EEHR 51

Mr. Cheng Wai Tak

EEEEAE SR EE
Beneficial owner
ExBEAEA

Note:

These 923,427,151 shares are held by Winful Enterprises Limited (“Winful
Enterprises”), which in turn is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Cheng
Wai Tak. As such, Mr. Cheng Wai Tak is deemed under the SFO to be
interested in these 923,427,151 shares held by Winful Enterprises.
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Percentage of
the Company’s

Number of issued share

shares held capital

AARCE®IT

FiEERGEHE BAETDL

923,427,151 62.24%
(Note) (Fff5E)

2,220,000 0.15%

Bt

% %923,427 151 I % 19 B Winful Enterprises Limited ([ Winful
Enterprises |) ¥4 * MWinful Enterprises B EMEZ S E2E K
EmilEr Al BREFHFRPEK BEELERER
M Winful EnterprisesFr#8 0 5% £923,427 151k i 1 R H
e



Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none
of the Directors and chief executives of the Company had
registered an interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
required to be entered in the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or which
were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the standard of dealings by
directors set out in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

So far as the Directors are aware, as at 31 December
2018, other than the Director and chief executive of the
Company, the following persons/entities have an interest
or a short position in the shares or the underlying shares
of the Company which were required to be disclosed to
the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO or which were required to be recorded in the
register of the Company required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO:

Name Nature of interests

=x ] REME

Winful Enterprises

HEREEHEA

Winful Enterprises

Note: Mr. Cheng Wai Tak is deemed under the SFO to be interested in

these 923,427,151 shares held by Winful Enterprises.

Directly beneficially owned
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, no
other person had any interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which were
required to be disclosed to the Company under Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were required to
be recorded in the register of the Company required to be
kept under section 336 of the SFO.

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, sales to the
Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 47.5% (2017: 59.2%) of the total sales for
the year and sales to the largest customer included
therein amounted to approximately 21.7% (2017: 30.5%).
Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 96.2% (2017: 86.1%) of the
total purchases for the year and purchase from the
largest supplier included therein amounted to
approximately 63.2% (2017: 64.2%).

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in
these major suppliers or customers.

The material related party transactions in relation to the
key management personnel remuneration as disclosed in
Note 30(c) to the consolidated financial statements are
connected transactions exempt from reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements pursuant to Rule 20.31(6) of the GEM Listing
Rules.
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The proceeds from the Company’s issue of 330,000,000
new shares (the “Placing”) at the time of the Listing
amounted to approximately HK$76 million, net of
underwriting fees and other related expenses. Details of
the use of proceeds from the Placing are set out on
pages 21 to 22 of the annual report.

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float
required by the GEM Listing Rules as at the date of this
report.

All the independent non-executive Directors were
delegated with the authority to review on an annual basis
the compliance with the non-competition undertaking
given by each of Mr. Cheng Wai Tak and Winful
Enterprises, the controlling shareholders of the Company
(collectively, the “Covenantors”) in favour of the Company
dated 20 January 2014 (the “Non-Competition Deed”).
The Covenantors have provided to the Company all
information necessary for the annual review by the
independent non-executive Directors and the Covenantors
have confirmed to the Company that each of the
Covenantors and his/its associates has not breached the
terms of the undertakings contained in the Non-
Competition Deed. All independent non-executive
Directors confirmed that they are not aware of any non-
compliance with the Non-Competition Deed by the
Covenantors during the year.

Details of the Non-Competition Deed have been set out in
the section headed “Relationship with Controlling
Shareholders” of the Prospectus.
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Save for the Share Option Scheme, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into during the year or
subsisted at the end of the year.

Details of the corporate governance practices adopted by
the Company are set out in the Corporate Governance
Report on pages 23 to 42 of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements have been audited
by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company to re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers as
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Perfect Optronics Limited

Cheng Wai Tak
Chairman
Hong Kong, 20 March 2019
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To the Shareholders of Perfect Optronics Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

The consolidated financial statements of Perfect Optronics
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
set out on pages 93 to 183, which comprise:

° the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2018;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for
the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements,
which include a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 December 2018, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(“the Code”), and we have fulfiled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised
as follows:

° Inventory valuation and provision

° Valuation of unlisted investments
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Key Audit Matter
BEBETEE

Inventory valuation and provision

FEMERRE

Refer to Note 2.13, Note 4.1(a) and Note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.

FLMEAMBRERNME2.13 ~ MisE4.1(a) M 719 -

As at 31 December 2018, the Group held inventories
of HK$81,890,000. As described in the accounting
policies in Note 2.13 to the consolidated financial
statements, inventories are carried at the lower of
cost and net realisable value.

R-ZZ—NF+-A=+—0  BE£EEAFE
81,890,000 JT 3 2047 & BF 75 sk & i :32.13€ 51 X
B TETEKARATEEFEMRE 2REKE
HIER ©

The Group operates in a market where new product
releases are regular. There is a risk that inventories
held will be sold below cost or become obsolete in
light of technological advancement and changing
market conditions. There is inherent judgement in the
levels of sales and the selling price the directors
forecast when assessing the net realisable value
(“NRV”).
EEERLENMISEMENEREDL - BT
EREHUNERKANEREEXEANRERLT
NEFMBRNER - RFEATERRE((ATEE
FEDE BEHHEKTREENBAFERESR
¥  -

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
1P HY 2 5 40 47T B 7 BA 2 W 5T B R

We understood and tested the controls by which
management determined the estimated selling price
for different types of products based on a consistent
process as in prior years where historically there
were no material adjustments required as a result of
the estimation process.
BHMTHERERAGEEERBEEAFERNEFET
TRIBEMNEMNEBAMKBENEZREE - MBE WL
BAMEEFMEAFELERFE -

In relation to the types of products which had
material balances as at year end, we evaluated the
assumptions applied by management on using the
historical sales data which reflected the expected life
cycle of similar products as the basis to estimate
their future sales. We considered these assumptions
appropriate based on the Group’s historical sales
pattern.
HRFREEREHRNERBEME - HMAD TG
EEEAMERNBSR ZEBRIXEARMEFEE®
B BHNBTHERBRERMAHERKREENE
£EoBE BEEEBAMNHEEER  RARRZER
REBEE -
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Key Audit Matter
BEBETEE

Inventory valuation and provision (Continued)

FEMGERRE A

Management calculates the NRV at each period end
based on the estimated selling price less cost to sell,
which requires significant judgements and
assumptions to be made to determine the estimated
selling price of individual products of similar nature
and expectation of future sales based on current
market conditions and available information. The
estimations are also subject to uncertainty as a result
of future changes of market trends, customer
demands and technology development.

REERER - &R BRE G S EREE KA
B 2R EE EERBRENERGAEER T2
R E AR A R RER - M ARKHEE B RRERT
MARABSENETE - A NMXEAMHEEE TFH
KEMBEBEROAKREIMELEN T EERRAR
i o

Annual Report 2018

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
1P HY 2 5 40 47T B 7 BA 2 W 5T B R

We further discussed with management to
understand the additional factors that were
considered relevant based on the current market
conditions that may require adjustments to the
historical sales pattern for both the price and the
quantity of the selected products and obtained
evidence for these explanations. We independently
evaluated the relevance of these factors and
evidence supporting the estimation of the NRV by
using our industry knowledge and external market
analysis and found them to be reasonable. We
further tested, on a sample basis, by comparing the
estimated selling price and sales quantity with post
year-end sales data of the selected products and
found the estimated selling price and sales quantity
in the NRV assessment to be within reasonable
ranges.
BHMEEEEE —Tm UNTHREBEEERTR
MAMZE RN EMMEBREREZ MAkEEELHMERE
EnBRREENETHEBEHELAE Uk
ZEMRBEIS IR - RAIARM AT E R H K INED
MISH MBI hZERERNEBEREE L5 &
REREGTNZRE TRREABSRE - RfIE—FE
ARMEAIR U EERFEEEMKEMNER
HEMNHESSBELR WHEHATERFETMGEFR
N EEREEBSIESHE -

Based on the work performed, we considered that
the inventory provision provided was in line with the
Group’s policy and was supportable by historical
market trends, customer demands, technology
development as well as management’s expectations
for future sales and inventory management plans.
ERRMAERTHIE BHMABR/AARNEFER
HRFE ESENEEX THAATSBEE BFE
KRB BERUREEBURRHEENTEHRARTE
EIRET RIS o



Key Audit Matter
BEBETEE

Valuation of unlisted investments

FLEMBREZMGE

Refer to Note 3.3, Note 4.1(b), Note 17 and Note 18
to the consolidated financial statements.

FERMEA M EHERME3.3 M4 1) - W17k
Bi5E18 o

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has unlisted
investments of HK$54,988,000 and HK$2,652,000
measured at fair value through profit or loss and at
fair value through other comprehensive income
respectively, using market information and significant
unobservable inputs.

RZE-NF+_A=+—H FMEATSEHKE
ETABERARE SEBEEARAABENA
BakBRAABEFAHEMEZERGENIE FTRE
7 5l /54,988,000 7T & 2,652,000/% T °

The Group has engaged external appraisers to
assess the fair values of these unlisted investments.
The appraised values are based on valuation models.
Because of the limited comparable transactions in the
market, it is challenging to validate the appraisal
values and therefore inherent risks in the appraised
values remain.
EEBCEANDTEMAEZEFRLTREZA
REE -TEEBEDUGEEERERSERE - HRTH L
ALBHNRZER  REFHEEE /R - HUET
HEEFERS AR -

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
1P HY 2 5 40 47T B 7 BA 2 W 5T B R

We understood and tested the operating
effectiveness of related controls to determine that
appropriate oversight from directors had been
exercised within the valuations process.
BMTHRIUAAAEAETERENSEXNN  UEE
EXEREEAERAHBRFLALEERMAE -

As the valuation of the unlisted investments required
significant estimates and reliance on external
valuations, we assessed the objectivities,
independences and expertise of the external
appraisers.

HRIFLMREZHEFTEERGEE RERBEIN G

B RPEFENBTETOERYE BT ERTE
f o
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Key Audit Matter
BEBETEE

We focused on this area because the valuation of
investments in unlisted investments is highly
dependent on the key assumptions which are not
observable in the market.
HRELMERENEETIEBREERE EMSH
ERAEERS R MERBEE L ES -
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
1P HY 2 5 40 47T B 7 BA 2 W 5T B R

In addition, we also assessed both the
methodologies and assumptions used by
management in the calculation of the year end fair
values by the following procedures:
N BT EERBBEAEFRALBEMAN
FERRRE  BFAT
o Evaluated the methodologies and key
assumptions used in the valuation models by
comparing the assumptions used against
appropriate benchmarks and investigated
significant differences, challenging the
appropriateness of the pricing multiples
available from comparable companies and
assessing sensitivities to assumptions.
. AEHEERERCAERFERSR  HER
%%ﬁﬁm% SEEE RS BREFAEERNE
CHAERAGNEBEHESREREE
&&%F“mwﬁf

o Tested the data integrity for the valuation
models.

e HHAEBEBRAMNEBTERFETAH -

° Used our valuation expert to perform

independent assessments.

MARMNEEZERETBLNME-

Based on the work performed, we considered the
assumptions used above all fell within an acceptable
range.
ERENTHIE MR/ LGS
HBRAIEX&EE -

EHMEANER



The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises all of
the information included in the annual report other than
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

QOur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Annual Report 2018

oK
e
TE]
mht

EE EEENMBHREEE-

ZMOHBER EHGEEMBEREEBRS M T
EHREMFFRFERMEBNENFERRANGF
AEAE ALABRERMER N ZEAE &K
FoHMER BTUHERERR)BRERMNE
RO-BUZIABERNEEMBDN - HATE
RABRESHOARTREMEMALE EHAELE
MEE -AERJFERKTEHRE  BTER
ERFCBEEBAEETHESN EX—E
K 8RR BRI 7 FE B AR BE R o #8 AR PR AT LA |
BAFRERIIE WREEBHTMEBIE
RMERAEFESAVBRRERAERBEES
IEMRAMIELNGERE BB ERR
AR WREERK -

ERB(EABBFEIETEANBES - &K
PERTEXHE RETEXEREE - R
(EPI

o BAIMEARMEFRERMERSE M
BHREAFEEAFERRANRR - Rt &
HITEABEFAREELRAR  ARER
FREMEENRTER (EARMERN
Eft - ARBFFAIRES RER HE F
BER ERRM HEBRAREZRZ
b FHiREERBRRFMERNEANLE
AREGLR RS SN ARRE R R ERMER
B B K 88 AR R At 1 LB o

o TREETAMANBLH - ARHEY
rBE LR - B R HLIFY B RE R
EHNEREERER -



° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Cheng Lap Yam.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 20 March 2019
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

BHE-_ZT—N\F+_A=1+—HLLFE

2017
—E—tF
Note HK$’000
B = FAT
Revenue L ON 5, 6 371,518
Cost of sales 5 & B AR 8 (425,311)
Gross loss EB (58,793)
Other gains/(losses), net H iz, (B518)F8E 7 (47)
Distribution and selling expenses 7 $5 & 5 & I X2 8 (11,939
General and administrative — M RAITE X
expenses 8 (28,973)
Research and development T RFAERY
expenses 8 (2,565)
Operating loss REEHE (97,317)
Finance income 2R S N 169
Finance costs M &R (603)
Finance costs, net W% ERFE 10 (434)
Loss before income tax BRETBRATE R (97,751)
Income tax Fris# 11 (578)
Loss for the year FEEEB (98,329)
Other comprehensive (loss)/ Hih2m(&E8)
income: S WE
Items that may be subsequently &% i] & 35 7 45 &
reclassified to income Wam .2 EH
statement
Change in value of available-for- At & & g & &
sale financial assets ZEEES 22,670
Currency translation differences 4N & =78 573
Items that will not be BERTEENHER
subsequently reclassified to Was .2 EH
income statement
Change in value of financial asset &2 72 BEH A Hth
at fair value through other TEHKEzEHBEE
comprehensive income BEEEE —
Total comprehensive loss FEXEBRARE
for the year (75,086)
2018 & % 93
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z—N\F+-A=+—RHLFE

2017
—E—tF
Note HK$’000
Bt 5 FAT
Loss for the year attributable to: FEEERER :
Equity holders of the Company  ANRQF#E A A (98,329)
Total comprehensive loss for the FE 2 HEBAER
year attributable to: B
Equity holders of the Company AR GI#EZFFEA A (75,086)
Basic and diluted loss BEREXR#E HK(6.63) cents
per share B8 12 (6.63)7& 11l

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive M F4A& 2 EWRREEBENH T —FHE -
income should be read in conjunction with the
accompanying notes.
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Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Deferred income tax assets
Financial asset at fair value
through other comprehensive
income
Financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss
Available-for-sale financial
assets

Current assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables

Tax recoverable
Restricted bank deposits
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Equity and liabilities

Equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company
Share capital
Reserves
Retained earnings

Total equity

Note
B =
BE
ERBEE
Y3 B R 14
ﬁﬁﬂﬁé?‘ 15
BREFSHEE 25
Eﬂﬁf@ﬁkﬁm
BE 17
BAREBETAER
LEBMEE 18
At ESREE
17
REBEE
EE 19
JE UK BR 3R R H b fE
g 3R 20
GIRDQER s
% BB H R 1T K 21
ReEMREEZEEY 21
EEHARE
ERREE
AATEREEAERL
=
fi& 7z 22
&
Bk
AR

ﬂ?

& BN R

As at 31 December 2018

RZZB-N\F+=-_HA=+—H

2017
—tF
HK$’000
TAT

3,005
3,122

56,947

63,074

77,333

48,973

20,948
88,025

235,279

298,353

14,837
147,641
97,558

260,036

2018 F # 95



96

mEBBRR R

As at 31 December 2018
RZZE-—N\F+=ZA=+—H

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Deferred income tax liabilities

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

Bank borrowings
Current income tax liabilities

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

2017
—E—tF
Note HK$’000
B 5 FE T
=K
ERBEE
BREFMESHAE 25 69
69
REBEE
JE ) BR 3k R H Ath
it K 23 35,492
RITIE K 24 —
EHGHRAE 2,756
38,248
EEHEE 38,317
EnRkaEH8E 298,353

The consolidated financial statements on pages 93 to 183 Z93E183E MR A BEHERER =ZZE—NLF =
were approved by the Board of Directors on 20 March A - tEHH=Feg#t g WKXEEFSEE -
2019 and were signed on its behalf.

Cheng Wai Tak
BREE
Director

EF

Tse Ka Wing
EES
Director

EF

The above consolidated statement of financial position A F#r& B FEAR SR R FE BABE I P 55 — BRI % -
should be read in conjunction with the accompanying

notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Share
capital

k%

HK$'000
TRR

Share
premium
Rt ER
HK§'000

TER

GERREIR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\E+_-_A=+—RILEE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
ARARERBARERR

(Note 1) (Note 2)
(H&E1) (Wz2)

Other Merger Revaluation  Exchange  Retained Total
reserves reserve reserve reserve  eamings equity
AtRE AHRE  EHRR EXRR ERRE  RE4R
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Tén  TEr  TEx TR  TEn  TER

Balance at 1 January 2018 “E-N\E-F-REk 14,837 465,738 67,349 (415,675) 30,386 (157) 97,558 260,036
Adjustment on initial adoption of AR ME BB BHE EE

HKFRS 9 — Note 2.2 2 RE - Mit22 - - - - (30,814 - 30314 -
Adjusted opening balance at ~ R=B-NE-f-AZ

1 January 2018 LELETT 14837 465738 6T349  (415675) 7 (157 127872 2600%
Comprehensive loss 2EFR
Loss for the year EEBR - - - - - - (55780  (55780)
Other comprehensive loss A2 EER
Currency translation differences M E = - - - - - (265) - (269)
Change in value of financial asset 727 BB ALH2E

at fair value through other WEeREERR

comprehensive income 29 - - - - (26) - - (26)
Totd orer compretensive s A SEERAE - S S S O . . R )
Total comprehensive loss 2EFRAE - - - - (26) (265  (55780)  (56,071)
Balance at 31 December 2018 —Z-NE+=A=+-A

43 14,837 465,738 67,349 (415,675) 46 (422) 72,092 203,965

BxXXEHR-XAF 2018 £H
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z—N\F+-A=+—RHLFE

Share Share
capital premium
xR
HK$'000  HK$'000
T TAx
Balance at 1 January 2017 “E-tE-f-REs 14837 465,738
Comprehensive loss 2EFR
Loss for the year EEER - -
Other comprehensive income £ 1 2 Wi
Change in value of avallable-for-  HEHECBAEZBE
sale financial assets E] - -
Currency translation differences  SMEFEZE = -
Total other comprehensive A2ENREE
income - -
Total comprehensive loss rEFEAR = -
Dividend relating to 2016 “E-RFRE - -
Balance at 31 December 2017 —E-t%£+-A=+1-A
&i 14837 465738

Notes:

Other reserves include: (1) the difference between the share capital
issued by the Company for acquisition of the subsidiaries pursuant
to a reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) for the listing of the
Company and the aggregate capital of the subsidiaries being
acquired at the time of the reorganisation; and (2) the amount of
the loan waived by the controlling shareholder upon completion of
a common control combination.

Revaluation reserve represents fair value reserve for financial asset
at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) (for the
year ended 31 December 2018) or fair value reserve for available-
for-sale (“AFS”) financial assets (for the year ended 31 December
2017 and prior).

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity
should be read in conjunction with the accompanying
notes.

Annual Report 2018

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

(Note 1)
(Krit1)
QOther
reserves
b
HK$'000
T

67,349

67,349

M T

A E

RRAERNA AEEES

(Note 2)

(H352)
Merger Revaluation ~ Exchange  Retained Total
reserve reserve reseve  earnings equity
aftEE EfEE EXRB ERME B&RE
HK$000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Thr  Thr  TéEx  TET  TEx
(415,675) 7,716 (130 210724 349959
- - - (98329 (98329
- 22,670 - - 22,670
- - 573 - 573
- 22,670 573 - 23,243
- 22,670 513 (98329 (75,086)
- - - (14837)  (14,837)
(415,675) 30,386 (157) 97,558 260,036

HthFEERE: WVREBEARA LmETHNEA(E
Al RRARARKBEHBARSHITNRARKEMA
B KRENINBRB ZRERNER  RQTRAR
BHEHBZERRRRECERSE -

BEHEFEEDERAABEF ARMEERE ([EAR
BETAEZMEZEAKE) ZeREENA R BERE
(BE-Z—\F+-_A=+—BLEEMm=) KA #
TE(AHEEDEREEN AR BEREEEZ
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-_ZT—N\F+_A=1+—HLLFE

2017
—+F
Note HK$’000
B = FAT
Cash flows from operating RETHNRERE
activities
Cash used in operations KBRS 27 (81,576)
Income tax paid BETER (545)
Interest paid B F B (603)
Net cash used in operating KETEEBFAERS
activities (82,724)
Cash flows from investing RETHNRERE
activities
Receipt of compensation W B 1 (& 11,238
Purchase of property, plant and B E ¥ % - W= K& H
equipment 14 (1,575)
Purchase of available-for-sale BEAHEESREE
financial assets (2,606)
Proceeds from disposal of HEYE - BE RE&E
property, plant and equipment FT 18 308 —
Interest received 2 YA B 169
Net cash (used in)/generated from & & E® (FTH) EA4L
investing activities FIRE 7,226
Cash flows from financing METHNRERE
activities
Proceeds from bank borrowings — $8 17 f& 2 BT 18 ;OB -
Repayments of bank borrowings & & R 17 & & —
Decrease in restricted bank X BRI RIT I K
deposits 3,754
Dividends paid BT E (14,837)
Net cash generated from/ BEERBELE(FTA)
(used in) financing activities FIRE (11,0893)

2018 £ 3;
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z—N\F+-A=+—RHLFE

2017
—E—tF
Note HK$’000
B = FAT
Net decrease in cash and cash HE&RBRESEEBYR D
equivalents FE (86,581)
Cash and cash equivalents at FUNHReRREEEY
beginning of year 174,126
Exchange (losses)/gains on cash IR& KB & EEWE L
and cash equivalents (BB ks 480
Cash and cash equivalents at HEFXEERBLZEY
end of year 21 88,025

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should A F#GABEREREEBENHE—HEE -
be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

100 Annual Report 2018



Perfect Optronics Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 13 June
2013, as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law (as Revised) of the
Cayman lIslands. The address of its registered office
is Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, PO Box 1350,
Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman lIslands. The
Company’s shares are listed on the GEM of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The Company is an investment holding company
and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”) are
principally engaged in the trading and processing of
display panels, development and sales of optics
products and trading of related electronic
components.

These consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), unless
otherwise stated.

This note provides a list of the significant
accounting policies adopted in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented, unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements of the
Group have been prepared in accordance with
all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”). The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for financial
asset at FVOCI and financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) which have
been measured at fair value.

e B R R MY R

BEZXBEERARTARRADRZZE—=
FRAT=ZARBREHERRIAUER]
NMEREHSFMK YR —HEREE
R A &) o H aEff #% & & (2 % Clifton House,
75 Fort Street, PO Box 1350, Grand
Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands ° Zx
NERHOREBBME RSB R R RIGEM
ke
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Al(GEASE]) T 2RERTERE
ZRMT - ABERZHAERIHEEINA LA
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R BEBAN WEHBRRTIABT
(BT 25

M H AR R FERE M BRI E KA
MEBSHBR -BRARBAERI  LFK
REMEFEERER -

AEENGAMBRRDTEBELR
SR A ((EAEFMAE]) R
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The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

The Group has applied the following
standards and amendments for the first
time for their annual reporting period
commencing on 1 January 2018:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments

HK(IFRIC) — Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and

Advance Consideration

Amendments to Classification and Measurement of
HKFRS 2 Share-Based Payment
Transactions
Amendments to Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
HKFRS 4 Instruments with HKFRS 4

Insurance Contracts

Amendments to As part of the annual
HKFRS 1 and improvements to HKFRSs
Hong Kong Accounting 2014-2016 cycle
Standard (‘HKAS”) 28

Amendments to Transfers of Investment Property
HKAS 40

Annual Report 2018
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A number of new or amended standards
became applicable for current reporting
period. Of these, the following are
relevant to the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

° HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments,
and

° HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers

The other standards did not have a
material impact on the Group’s
accounting policies and did not require
any adjustments.

The following are new standards and
amendments to standards which have
been issued but are not effective and
have not been early adopted. The Group
plans to adopt these new standards and
amendments to standards when they
become effective. The Group’s
assessment of the impact of these new
standards and interpretations is set out
below.
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Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on
or after
BEUATHE#ER %
Bmzat HEEX
Conceptual Framework for Financial ~ Revised Conceptual Framework for 1 January 2020
Reporting 2018 Financial Reporting
)\ EHBRERER RIEFT B REMOAER —E_TF—-H—H
HKFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019
BRI B REERE165 HE —_E-hF—-HA—H
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1 January 2021
BEMBRESEANEITH REE 4 —EZ—5—-A—H
HK(IFRIC) — Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax 1 January 2019
Treatments
BEE(BRMBREREZE®) PrigHi IR 77 A\ N E B & —Z-hnF—-H—H
— REE235
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of Material 1 January 2020
BRI LSRR EZEMMTER —Z-ZF—-H—H
BB g LR EH (BT AX)
Amendments to HKAS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’ on Plan 1 January 2019
Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement
BB G L FE19% (BT K) HEER] BMRHAEBHNIEERM] —T-AF-A—H
Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and 1 January 2019
Joint Ventures
BB gt R 8285 (BRI &) RBERRAREERENREEZ —T-AF—A—H
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative 1 January 2019
Compensation
ERUBRES LR (BFTA) EABRHEZRAENRFN —Z-hnfE—-H—H
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets To be determined
HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture
BRI B REERE105 K REEHRHEBENRAIRAEREZH #E
BB G LR F£285 (BF] &) BEHERTE
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 1 January 2019
2015-2017 Cycle
BEMBHREEL (BATX) BEMBRERAN_Z—1F —Z-hF—-H—-H

E-T-LERENFELE
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HKFRS 16 will result in almost all leases
being recognised on the consolidated
statement of financial position by
lessees, as the distinction between
operating and finance leases is removed.
Under the new standard, an asset (the
right to use the leased item) and a
financial liability to pay rentals are
recognised. The only exceptions are
short-term and low-value leases.

The accounting for lessors will not
significantly change.

The standard will affect primarily the
accounting for the Group’s operating
leases. As at the reporting date, the
Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of approximately
HK$5,135,000. However, the Group has
not yet determined to what extent these
commitments will result in the
recognition of an asset and a liability for
future payments and how this will affect
the Group’s profit and classification of
cash flows.

Some of the commitments may be
covered by the exception for short-term
and low value leases and some
commitments may relate to
arrangements that will not qualify as
leases under HKFRS 16.

wa B RRME

BEW B HmEERFE165 K&
BABARNGEMBRRAERA
EREAMOHE  HEEH
EEBEHE MR RIEE
Bro RIZFR]ER - & E (2
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ReEERARNEHMEEER

= o

HAANEHERETRAE

ZEABEIBEFEREBLE
MEZAR -RJREBEH K
EENTAIRECEERE
495,135,000/ 7T » 81+ A&
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The Group will apply the standard from
its mandatory adoption date of 1
January 2019. The Group intends to
apply the simplified transition approach
and will not restate comparative
amounts for the vyear prior to first
adoption. Right-of-use assets for
property leases will be measured on
transition as if the new rules had always
been applied. All other right-of-use
assets will be measured at the amount
of the lease liability on adoption
(adjusted for any prepaid or accrued
lease expenses).

There are no other standards that are
not yet effective and that would be
expected to have a material impact on
the Group in the current or future
reporting periods and on foreseeable
future transactions.
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The adoption of HKFRS 15 did not have any
material impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

HKFRS 9 replaces the provisions of HKAS 39
that relate to the recognition, classification and
measurement of financial assets and financial
liabilities, derecognition of financial
instruments, impairment of financial assets and
hedge accounting. The adoption of HKFRS 9
from 1 January 2018 resulted in changes in
accounting policies and adjustments to the
amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements as described below. In
accordance with the transitional provisions in
HKFRS 9, HKFRS 9 was generally adopted
without restating comparative information. The
reclassifications and the adjustments arising
from the new impairment rules are therefore
not reflected in the restated consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31
December 2017, but are recognised in the
opening consolidated statement of financial
position on 1 January 2018.
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On 1 January 2018 (the date of

N =3 0 A4
initial application of HKFRS 9), the N )JZTJ”,E&C‘ %E;%E?ﬁﬁ#&;&
Group’s management has jigg?é%a/"ﬁﬁﬁfj«\
assessed which business models o~ ﬁﬁ ; ”% %Ezéé;z Z\
apply to the financial assets held : ?&‘EE_{H"H%%I
by the Group and has classified its AR IV S

V 5 BEAEAEBHE

financial instruments into the

B S e B O TR

£ Y BI| o8 By X °
appropriate HKFRS 9 categories. %ZE,ETEQ%E E’]ji‘l@
The main effects resulting from this T;‘F ou A S8 2T

reclassification are as follows:

108

Reclassify Reclassify
31 December from AFS from AFS
2017, financial asset financial asset 1 January
as originally to financial to financial 2018,
presented  asset at FVTPL  asset at FVOCI as restated
M E
HAURLESR <SREEEND
“E-tE HEENSEE EIROAER “E-N\E
TZAZt-0' RAAEEFA FAHGZER -A-RB
BRI BEzemEE B emEE gE3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL TAT TAT TAET
(Note 1) (Note Il)
(MizH) ()
AFS financial assets THEELREE
— Unlisted preferred - FLMBEER
shares 54,269 (54,269) - -
— Unlisted equity - FLmixiE
securities E5 2,678 = (2,678) =
56,947 (54,269) (2,678) =
Financial asset at FVTPL BROABETARE
ZEMEE
— Unlisted preferred - ELmELR
shares - 54,269 - 54,269
Financial asset at FVOCI ROABET AL
2ENEZER
KE
— Unlisted equity - FLmikE
securities F5 = = 2,678 2,678
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Effect on Effect on
revaluation retained
reserve earnings
HEGFEE HEFWR
e ga
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B = FHE T FH T
Opening balance R=ZB-N\F
1 January 2018 —A—HBH
— HKAS 39 MO Eer —
EBGTTER
$E395% 30,386 —
Unlisted securities EEMHES
— Reclassify from AFS — — Al &
financial asset to TREE
financial asset at EFHE
FVTPL EEREQR
BEFA
Buze
Bh & E () (30,314) 30,314
Opening balance R-ZE—-N\F
1 January 2018 —A—HH®
— HKFRS 9 BMAEer —
EREMEBRE
% B %958 72 30,314
Notes: B &
() Reclassification from AFS financial 0] AL ESREES

asset to financial asset at FVTPL

The Group’s investments in preferred
shares were reclassified from AFS
financial asset to financial asset at
FVTPL (HK$54,269,000 as at 1
January 2018). They do not meet the
criteria to be classified either as
financial asset at FVOCI or at
amortised cost. Related fair value
gain of HK$30,314,000 was
reclassified from the revaluation
reserve to the retained earnings on 1
January 2018.
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Notes: (Continued)

(I Equity investment previously classified
as AFS financial asset

The Group elected to present in other
comprehensive income changes in the
fair value of all its remaining equity
investment previously classified as
AFS financial asset, because such
investment is held as long-term
strategic investment that is not
expected to be sold in the short to
medium term. As a result, asset with
a fair value of HK$2,678,000 was
reclassified from AFS financial asset
to financial asset at FVOCI.

There is no impact on the Group’s
accounting for financial liabilities, as
the new requirements only affect
the accounting for financial
liabilities that are designated at
FVTPL and the Group does not
have any such liabilities.

The Group’s trade and bills
receivables and other financial
assets carried at amortised cost
are financial assets that are subject
to HKFRS 9’s new expected credit
loss (“ECL”) model. The Group was
required to revise its impairment
methodology under HKFRS 9 for
each of these classes of assets.
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While restricted bank deposits and
cash and cash equivalents are also
subject to the impairment
requirements of HKFRS 9, the
identified impairment loss was
immaterial.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9
simplified approach to measure
ECL by using a lifetime expected
loss allowance for all trade and
bills receivables. ECL are estimated
by grouping the trade and bills
receivables based on shared credit
risk characteristics and collectively
assessed for likelihood of recovery,
taking into account the nature of
the customer and its aging
category. The expected loss rates
are based on historical credit
losses experience and are adjusted
to reflect current and forward
looking information on factors
affecting the ability of the
customers to settle the
receivables.

Other financial assets carried at
amortised cost are considered to
be low risk, and therefore the
impairment provision is determined
as 12 months expected credit
losses. It is the portion of lifetime
ECL that results from default
events on a financial instrument
that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. However,
when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since
origination, the allowance will be
based on the lifetime ECL.
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Management has closely monitored
the credit qualities and the
collectability of the trade and bills
receivables and other financial
assets at amortised cost. Since the
Group’s historical credit loss
experience for its trade and bills
receivables and other financial
assets at amortised cost was
minimal, the restatement of the
loss allowance on transition to
HKFRS 9 as a result of applying
the ECL model was immaterial.

Subsidiaries are all entities (including
structured entities) over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has
rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its
power to direct the activities of the
entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated
from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is

used to account for business
combinations by the Group.
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Intercompany transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of
the transferred asset. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results
and equity of subsidiaries are shown
separately in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, statement of
changes in equity and statement of
financial position respectively.

Except for the Reorganisation and business
combinations under common control, the
Group applies the acquisition method to
account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of
a subsidiary comprises the:

° fair values of the assets transferred

° liabilities incurred to the former owners of
the acquired business

° equity interests issued by the Group
° fair value of any asset or liability resulting
from a contingent consideration

arrangement, and

° fair value of any pre-existing equity
interest in the subsidiary
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|dentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are, with limited exceptions,
measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises any
non-controlling interest in the acquired entity
on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net
identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

The excess of the

° consideration transferred,

° amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquired entity, and

° acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those
amounts are less than the fair value of the net
identifiable assets of the business acquired,
the difference is recognised directly in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as a bargain purchase.
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Where settlement of any part of cash
consideration is deferred, the amounts payable
in the future are discounted to their present
value as at the date of exchange. The
discount rate used is the entity’s incremental
borrowing rate, being the rate at which a
similar borrowing could be obtained from an
independent financier under comparable terms
and conditions. Contingent consideration is
classified either as equity or a financial liability.
Amounts classified as a financial liability are
subsequently remeasured to fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the
acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising
from such remeasurement are recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received
and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a
dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary in the period the dividend is
declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.
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Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker. The
chief operating decision-maker, who is
responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the
directors, who make strategic decisions.

[tems included in the financial
statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation
currency.

Foreign currency transactions are
translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions or valuation
where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the
consolidated statement of
comprehensive income within “other
gains/(losses), net”.
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Non-monetary items that are measured
at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value was
determined. Translation differences on
assets and liabilities carried at fair value
are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss. For example, translation
differences on non-monetary assets and
liabilities such as equities held at FVTPL
are recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as
part of the fair value gain or loss and
translation differences on non-monetary
assets such as equities classified as
FVOCI are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

The results and financial position of all
the Group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency
as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each
statement of financial position
presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;
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(i)  income and expenses for each
income statement are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this
average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

(i) all resulting currency translation
differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences
arising from the translation of any net
investment in foreign entities, and of
borrowings and other financial
instruments designated as hedges of
such investments, are recognised in
other comprehensive income. When a
foreign operation is sold or any
borrowings forming part of the net
investment are repaid, the associated
exchange differences are reclassified to
profit or loss, as part of the gain or loss
on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments
arising on the acquisition of a foreign
entity are treated as assets and liabilities
of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate.
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On the disposal of a foreign operation
(that is, a disposal of the Group’s entire
interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, a disposal involving loss of
joint control over a joint venture that
includes a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associate that includes
a foreign operation), all of the currency
translation differences accumulated in
equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the
company are reclassified to the
consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income during the
financial period in which they are incurred.
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Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their cost to their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold Over the shorter of
improvements the term of the
leases or 5 years
Moulds and machinery 2-5 years

Furniture and office 3-5 years
equipment
Motor vehicles 4-5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the
end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing the proceeds with the carrying
amount and are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income within “other gains/(losses), net”.

Club memberships with indefinite useful life are
stated at cost less any impairment losses.
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Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful
life are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment. Assets that are
subject to amortisation or depreciation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows which are
largely independent of the cash inflows from
other assets or group of assets (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

From 1 January 2018, the Group
classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently
at fair value (either through other
comprehensive income or through
profit or loss), and

° those to be measured at amortised
cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the
financial assets and the contractual
terms of the cash flows.
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For assets measured at fair value, gains
and losses will either be recorded in
profit or loss or other comprehensive
income. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading,
this will depend on whether the Group
has made an irrevocable election at the
time of initial recognition to account for
the equity investment at FVOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt investments
when and only when its business model
for managing those assets changes.

Regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on trade-
date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial assets have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership.

At initial recognition, the Group
measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at FVTPL, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at FVTPL are expensed in the
consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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Financial assets with embedded
derivatives are considered in their
entirety when determining whether their
cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Subsequent measurement of debt
instruments depends on the Group’s
business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the
asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

° Amortised cost: Assets that are
held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is
included in finance income using
the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition is recognised directly
in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income and
presented in “other gains/(losses),
net” together with foreign
exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented as
separate line item in the
consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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FVOCI: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows
and for selling the financial assets,
where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are
measured at FVOCI. Movements in
the carrying amount are taken
through other comprehensive
income, except for the recognition
of impairment gains or losses,
interest income and foreign
exchange gains and losses which
are recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive
income. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gains
or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is
reclassified from equity to profit or
loss and recognised in other gains/
(losses), net. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective
interest rate method. Foreign
exchange gains and losses are
presented in other gains/(losses),
net and impairment expenses are
presented as separate line item in
the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

FVTPL: Assets that do not meet the
criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI
are measured at FVTPL. A gain or
loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVTPL
is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive
income and presented within “other
gains/(losses), net” in the period in

which it arises.
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The Group subsequently measures all
equity investments at fair value. Where
the Group’s management has elected to
present fair value gains and losses on
equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value
gains and losses to profit or loss
following the derecognition of the
investment. Dividends from such
investments continue to be recognised in
the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as other income
when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial
assets at FVTPL are recognised in other
gains/(losses), net in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as
applicable. Impairment losses (and
reversal of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at FVOCI are not
reported separately from other changes
in fair value.

From 1 January 2018, the Group
assesses on a forward looking basis the
expected credit losses associated with its
debt instruments carried at amortised
cost and FVOCI. The impairment
methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.
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For trade receivables, the Group applies
the simplified approach permitted by
HKFRS 9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from
initial recognition of the receivables.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9
retrospectively, but has elected not to
restate comparative information. As a
result, the comparative information
provided continues to be accounted for
in accordance with the Group’s previous
accounting policy.

Until 31 December 2017, the Group
classifies its financial assets as loans and
receivables and AFS financial assets. The
classification determined on the purpose
for which the investments were acquired.
Management determined the
classification of its investments at initial
recognition.

Reclassifications were made at fair
value as of the reclassification
date. Fair value became the new
cost or amortised cost as
applicable, and no reversals of fair
value gains or losses recorded
before reclassification date were
subsequently made.
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The measurement at initial
recognition did not change on
adoption of HKFRS 9, see
description above.

Subsequent to the initial
recognition, loans and receivables
were subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

AFS financial assets were
subsequently carried at fair value.
Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive
income.

When securities classified as AFS
were sold, the accumulated fair
value adjustments recognised in
other comprehensive income were
reclassified to profit or loss.
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The Group assessed at the end of
each reporting period whether
there was objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial
assets was impaired. A financial
asset or a group of financial assets
was impaired and impairment
losses were incurred only if there
was objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (a
‘loss event’) and that loss event (or
events) had an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial
assets that could be reliably
estimated. In the case of equity
investments classified as AFS, a
significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of the security below
its cost was considered an
indicator that the assets are
impaired.

Annual Report 2018

AEBERZHRE B R
HEARBERENR—
REeMEEX AT
BECRE -EAXHE
EBRBTIRNTHERE
ERBELE—FHZR
EYORENFH(EHRE
=MD - MZFRIZF
BEEEHAHZETRE
EXZATHEENM
AARBESREBKE
B AR EA Rl
ZETREELAZAESD
A ECRE & E LR
BEER -MEkAKED
BAAHE L E  RIE A
mARBERNEHFE
BKEENERARER S
BERENTR -



For loans and receivables, the
amount of the loss was measured
as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that had not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the asset was
reduced and the amount of the
loss was recognised in the
consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. If a loan
had a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss was the current
effective interest rate determined
under the contract. As a practical
expedient, the Group could
measure impairment on the basis of
an instrument’s fair value using an
observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the
amount of the impairment loss
decreased and the decrease could
be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was
recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit
rating), the reversal of the
previously recognised impairment
loss was recognised in the
consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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If there was objective evidence of
impairment for AFS financial
assets, the cumulative loss —
measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and
the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial
asset previously recognised in
profit or loss — was removed from
equity and recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment losses on equity
instruments that were recognised in
profit or loss were not reversed
through profit or loss in a
subsequent period.

If the fair value of a debt
instrument classified as AFS
increased in a subsequent period
and the increase could be
objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised in profit or loss,
the impairment loss was reversed
through profit or loss.
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Financial assets and liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously. The
legally enforceable right must not be
contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the company or the
counterparty.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using
the weighted average method. The cost of
finished goods and work in progress
comprises raw materials and other direct
costs. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

Trade receivables are amounts due from
customers for merchandise sold or services
performed in the ordinary course of business.
If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets. Trade and
other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less allowance for impairment.
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For the purpose of presentation in the
consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents include cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks, other short-
term, highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

These amounts represent liabilities for goods
and services provided to the Group prior to
the end of financial year which are unpaid.
Trade and other payables are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one
year or less (or in the normal operating cycle
of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
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Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost. Any
difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan
facilities are recognised as transaction costs of
the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down.
In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-
down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of
the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the
consolidated statement of financial position
when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of a
financial liability that has been extinguished or
transferred to another party and the
consideration paid, including any non-cash
assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the end of the reporting period.
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General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income in the period in which they are
incurred.

The income tax expense or credit for the
period is the tax payable on the current
period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction
adjusted by changes in deferred income tax
assets and liabilities attributable to temporary
differences and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is
calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the
statement of financial position date in the
countries where the Group operates and
generates taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.
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Deferred income tax is provided in full,
using the liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred income
tax liabilities are not recognised if they
arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the end of the
reporting period and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are
recognised only if it is probable that
future taxable amounts will be available
to utilise those temporary differences and
losses.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities
are not recognised for temporary
differences between the carrying amount
and tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the company is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable
that the differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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Deferred income tax assets and liabilities
are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current income
tax assets and liabilities and when the
deferred income tax balances relate to
the same taxation authority. Current
income tax assets and liabilities are
offset where the entity has a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Current and deferred income tax is
recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is
also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

The Group pays contributions to defined
contribution plans in Hong Kong. The
schemes are generally funded through
payments to separate trustee-
administered funds, determined by
periodic calculations.
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A defined contribution plan is a pension
plan under which the Group pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity. The
Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions if
the fund does not hold sufficient assets
to pay all employees the benefits relating
to employee service in the current and
prior periods.

The Group pays contributions to
administered pension plans on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary
basis. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have
been paid. The contributions are
recognised as employee benefit
expenses when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset
to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in the future payments is
available.

The Group also contributes on a monthly
basis to defined contribution retirement
benefit plans organised by relevant
municipal and provincial governments in
the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”). The municipal and provincial
governments undertake to assume the
retirement benefit obligations payable to
all existing and future retired employees
for post-retirement benefits beyond the
contributions made. The assets of these
plans are held separately from those of
the Group in independently administered
funds managed by the PRC government.
Contributions to these plans are
expensed as incurred.
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The expected cost of bonus payments
wholly due within 12 months after the
balance sheet date are recognised as a
liability where the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a
result of services rendered by employees
and a reliable estimate of the obligation
can be made.

Employee entitlements to annual leave
are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a
result of services rendered by employees
up to the statement of financial position
date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until
the time of leave.

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events; it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and the amount can be reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses. Provision for an
onerous contract is recognised when the
unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations
under the contract exceed the economic
benefits expected to be received. The
unavoidable costs under a contract reflect the
least net cost of exiting from the contract,
which is the lower of the cost of fulfilling the
contract and any compensation or penalties
arising from failure to fulfil the contract.
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Where there are a number of similar
obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will
be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to anyone
item included in the same class of obligations
may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value
of the expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to
the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expenses.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that
arises from past events and whose existence
will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of
the Group.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the
consolidated financial statements. A contingent
asset is disclosed where an inflow of
economic benefits is probable. If it has
become virtually certain that an inflow of
economic benefits will arise, the asset and the
related income are recognised in the
consolidated financial statements of the period
in which the change occurs.
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Sales of goods are recognised when
control of the products has transferred,
being when the products are delivered to
the customer, the customer has
accepted the products, the collection of
the related consideration is probable and
there is no unfulfilled obligation that
could affect the customer’s acceptance
of the products.

A receivable is recognised when the
goods are delivered as this is the point
in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage
of time is required before the payment is
due.

Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest method.

Leases in which a significant portion of the
risks and rewards of ownership are retained
by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases
(net of any incentives received from the
lessor), are charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Dividend distribution to the Company’s
shareholders is recognised as a liability in the
Group’s and the Company’s financial
statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved by the respective
shareholders or directors of the group
companies, where appropriate.
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The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk and cash flow and fair value
interest rate risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and
price risk. The Group’s overall risk
management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group’s financial performance. Risk
management is carried out by the senior
management of the Group.

The Group is primarily exposed to
foreign exchange risk arising from
United States dollars (“USD”),
Renminbi (“RMB”) and New Taiwan
dollars (“TWD”).

Foreign exchange risk arises when
future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities are
denominated in a currency that is
not the entity’s functional currency.
Management periodically reviews
assets and liabilities held in
currencies other than the entity’s
functional currency to ensure that
net exposure is kept at an
acceptable level. The Group does
not enter into any arrangement to
hedge its foreign exchange rate
risk.
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The Group manages its foreign
exchange risk by closely
monitoring the movement of the
foreign currency rates. In the
opinion of the directors, HK$ are
reasonably stable against the USD
under the Linked Exchange Rate
System, and accordingly, no
sensitivity analysis with respect to
the USD against HK$ is
performed.

The directors of the Company are
of the opinion that the impact on
exchange differences for RMB and
TWD is immaterial as at 31
December 2018 and 31 December
2017 due to the low volume of
transactions and minimal amount of
balances, and accordingly no
sensitivity analysis is performed.

Interest rate risk relates to the risk
that the fair value or cash flows of
a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group’s interest
rate risk arises from bank deposits
and bank balances. The interest
rate for the bank loans are fixed.
Other than bank deposits and bank
balances, the Group does not have
significant interest-bearing assets
or liabilities.
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At 31 December 2018, if interest
rates on bank deposits and bank
balances had been 100 basis
points higher/lower, with all other
variables held constant, the pre-tax
loss for the year would have been
approximately HK$815,000 (2017:
HK$1,090,000) lower/higher, mainly
as a result of higher/lower interest
income from cash and bank
deposits.

The Group’s exposure to price risk
arises from investments held by the
Group and classified in the
consolidated statement of financial
position either as FVOCI or at
FVTPL.

At 31 December 2018, if the fair
values of the investments classified
as financial assets at FVTPL and
FVOCI had been 10% higher/lower,
with all other variables held
constant, the Group’s pre-tax loss
and other components of equity
would have been HK$5,499,000
lower/higher and HK$265,000
higher/lower respectively. Pre-tax
loss for the year would decrease/
increase as a result of gains/
losses on financial asset classified
as at FVTPL. Other components of
equity would increase/decrease as
a result of gains/losses on financial
asset classified as FVOCI.
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At 31 December 2017, if the fair
values of the equity investment
classified as AFS financial assets
had been 10% higher/lower, with
all other variables held constant,
the Group’s equity would have
been HK$5,695,000 higher/lower
respectively.

Credit risk is managed on a group basis.
Credit risk arises from trade and other
receivables, restricted bank deposits and
bank balances. The carrying amounts of
these balances represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to financial assets. The credit
risk is monitored on an ongoing basis
with reference to the financial position of
the debtors, past experience and other
factors.

The Group has policies in place to
ensure that the sales of products are
made to customers with appropriate
credit histories and the Group performs
regular credit evaluations of its major
customers.

Annual Report 2018

R —+tF+=A
=t+—B - WMoBEAEA
HAHEBEE 2 KRE

BRERNREBEEN R
210% - 1 FT B H fib 7]
BRETE AXEEZ
WS o Bl bR
5,695,000/ JT °

EERRZEBELEER -5
ERRIRB D85 R K
Ho A & WK~ R B R 1T 17 K
AR RITHERR - X FREBRHIR
HESAEEREREREE
AENRAEERR - FEER
BRILBEREEER Y2 E
BB AT BGRB8 E &R
REMAE-

AEEERMEBECR @ ERE
EREEDRAAEREEER
BHEPIEL  AEETEH
HITZEPETEHREER
filr o



The Group applies the lifetime expected
loss provision, as permitted under
HKFRS 9, for all trade and bills
receivables.

The Group considers the credit risk
characteristics of the trade and bills
receivables to measure the ECL. For the
trade and bills receivables, the Group
has assessed the ECL by considering
historical default rates, existing market
conditions and forward-looking
information. Based on the Group’s
assessment, ECL rate of trade and bills
receivables is close to zero. Therefore,
the loss allowance provision for these
trade and bills receivables balances was
not material.

Restricted bank deposits and bank
balances are deposited in reputable
banks. Management does not expect
any losses from non-performance by
these banks.
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Prudent liquidity risk management
includes maintaining sufficient cash and
marketable securities, the availability of
funding through an adequate amount of
committed credit facilities and the ability
to settle the payables of the Group.

The table below analyses the Group’s
financial liabilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period
at the date of the statement of financial
position to the contractual maturity date.
The amounts disclosed in the table are
the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
Balances due within 12 months equal

EENRDECRARERERE
BRBAEHAHRERBER
F BERENEABEER
B MARNEEAKRENE
K e

TRINTFAEENEHBABR
ERMBHRRERBZES KB
B 80 % &4 HA R 42 PR AR R 21 B AR
BIEITR DN - ERAWED
TEASAMNAUBANEESR
E-R12EAARNENERER
FEESHRES BRMRMN
TETEK-

their carrying balances, as the impact of
discounting is not significant.

Less than Between
1 year 1 to 5 years Total
R—%F —ZhfF Bt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TATT TATT TATT

At 31 December 2018 RZ=-T—N\fF

+t=A=+—8H
Trade payables FE A BR 3K
Other payables H th FE 1 5%
Bank borrowings RITE XK

At 31 December 2017 R=-T—+tF

+=ZA=+—H
Trade payables JE - BR 3k 14,077 = 14,077
Other payables NS 4,619 — 4,619
18,696 — 18,696
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The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the
debt-to-asset ratio. The ratio is calculated as
total debt divided by total assets. Total debt is
calculated as interest-bearing borrowings. In
order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares and sell
assets to reduce debt.

During the year, the Group’s strategy, which
remained unchanged from prior year, was to
maintain a net cash position. As at 31
December 2018 and 31 December 2017, the
Group has a net cash position and the
aggregate balances of unrestricted bank
deposits, and cash and cash equivalents
exceeded the total interest-bearing debt by
HK$62,174,000 (2017: HK$88,025,000).

Financial instruments carried at fair value are
analysed by valuation method. The different
levels have been defined as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities
(level 1).
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° Inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the
assets or liabilities, either directly (that is,
as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices) (level 2).

° Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are
not based on observable market data
(that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
assets, including cash and cash equivalents,
restricted bank deposits, and trade, bills and
other receivables; and the Group’s financial
liabilities, including bank borrowings, trade and
other payables approximate their fair values
due to their short maturities.

The nominal values less any estimated credit
adjustments for financial assets and liabilities
with a maturity of less than one year are
assumed to approximate their fair values. The
fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure
purposes is estimated by discounting the
future contractual cash flows at the current
market interest rate that is available to the
Group for similar financial instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The following table presents the carrying value
of financial instruments measured at fair value
at the consolidated statement of financial
position across the three levels.

Recurring fair value REMEAABEE
measurements

Financial asset at FVTPL BRARBEFAERZZ

GeMBRRME

MR EREEE)

3.3 RDREEME (A

TR B =ERRI R ERE I BEARR
REAABEAEZERTARE
-

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2018
R-ZB-N\E+-A=+-—HZDOAEBHETE

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

#E1E $2fE E3E At

HK$°000
TET

HK$°000
THET

HK$’000
FTET

HK$°000
TET

— Unlisted preferred shares ~ — JE EM B LK - - 54,988 54,988
Financial asset at FVOCI BRnBEFAEM
ZEREZERMEE
— Unlisted equity securities — EETMREES - - 2,652 2,652
- - 57,640 57,640
Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2017
RZZE—+F+-_A=+—HBZAAEEHE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1E FE2E F3E st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FHET FAT FAET
Recurring fair value REEAABENE
measurements
AFS financial assets AHHESREE
— Unlisted preferred shares ~ — JE L E LK = = 54,269 54,269
— Unlisted equity securites ~ — JF E MR IEE 5 = = 2,678 2,678
- - 56,947 56,947

There were no transfers between levels 1, 2
and 3 during the year (2017: Nil).

FAFIE - F2EEFIE 2 H AL &
BE(CT—LF &)

BxXXEHR-XAF 2018 £H
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The following table presents the changes in TREBRBEE_ZFT—NF+=A
level 3 instruments for the years ended 31 —+t—BER-_ZFE—+ttF+=A
December 2018 and 31 December 2017: =S+—BLFEERIEBIAEZES:
Unlisted Unlisted
preferred equity
shares securities Total
FEEH FEEH
BER REES Bt

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TATT TATT TATT

Opening balance R=-=Z2—t&—-H—H

1 January 2017 ZFEeR 31,671 = 31,671
Acquisitions I B = 2,606 2,606
Gains recognised in other 7 £ fth % M Uk 25 #E 52

comprehensive income 2 Ytz 22,598 72 22,670
Closing balance R=-Z2—t&+=A

31 December 2017 =Zt+t—B2ZERER 54,269 2,678 56,947
Losses recognised in BB fth 2 U s AR

other comprehensive el SEi=

income - (26) (26)
Gains recognised in other R E ik zs,/ (E518) F 48

gains/(losses), net #R W= 719 — 719
Closing balance R=ZZE—-N\fF

31 December 2018 +=HA=+—H

2 F R ER 54,988 2,652 57,640

150 Annual Report 2018



wa B RRME

The following table summarises the valuation
techniques used and the quantitative
information about the significant unobservable
inputs used in level 3 fair value

TRIEANEIE R A BEFFEMA
EERDEABERTAERG A
BENTEEHR:

measurements:
Significant
unobservable Relationship of unobservable
Description Valuation technique inputs Value inputs to fair value
BEAFHUEER TUERRAYE
HH fhEH BABE BE HAREENEE
(@) Preferred shares 2018: Business valuation based on  Volatility 51.38% 10% increase/(decrease) in the volatility

discounted cash flow under
income approach; equity value
allocation based on option-
pricing method with inputs of
volatility, risk-free interest rate,
and dividend vyield.

issued by a
private entity

would result in (decrease)/increase in
fair value by approximately
(HK$39,000)/HK$8,000

-ARECERTZ ZB3-N\F: EBRERERKA HE 51.38% REEM/(BD)10%  BL AR EE
B AR BNENERT 2R REEBE W) /M (39,000%7) /
PERERBEEEL AR 8,000 T
BRANE ERBANERKES
IS
Weighted average 16.18% 5% increase/(decrease) in WACC would
cost of capital result in (decrease)/increase in fair
(‘WACC") value by approximately
(HK$3,637,000)/HK$4,093,000
METFHERKA 16.18% MEFHERRAKEM,/ (HD)5% - &
(TMETHER LDRBERD) /EmE
) (3,637,000% ) /'4,093,0007% 7T
2017: Market comparable Volatility 39.92% 10% increase/(decrease) in the volatility

would result in increase/(decrease) in
fair value by approximately
HK$27,000/(HK$20,000)

companies and equity value
allocation with option-pricing
method that is estimated based
on recent transaction prices,
volatility, risk-free interest rate,
and dividend yield

“E-tE WAL ERAR FH KR 39.92% REEM/ (HD)10% @ BLAABEE
METEEOERERE i JJu/ D) iﬁzmoof% /(20000
FAEDRBIARHER R B

- BRRAZRRSEH
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Significant
unobservable Relationship of unobservable
Description Valuation technique inputs Value inputs to fair value
EXAFAEHE TUBERAHE
Bk fhBH BAHE BEE HANEENEBRE
(b) Ordinary shares Discounted cash flow method WACC 12.69%  10% increase/(decrease) in WACC would
issued by a (2017: 12.91%) result in (decrease)/increase in fair
private entity value by approximately (HK$312,000)/
HK$390,000 (2017: (HK$286,000)/
HK$364,000)
-BhECERTr BRBERAE METFHERRE 12.69% MEFHERKAKEM,/ (HD)10% -
LEK (ZB—t&: BLAREBEMRD)/
12.91%) #149(312,000 1) /390,000%5 7T
(ZZ—+% : (286,000% T)
/364,000% TT)
Valuations of the above financial assets held AEBRBERARMAFAOU SR
by the Group as at the end of the reporting BEMMEHRB I (HENET
period were performed by independent
valuers.
The preparation of financial statements requires the BB HRRBETEH A BEER
use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will % BHEMBFRIASENRERER - B
seldom equal the actual results. Management also EBNHEEEARNEEN S BEREEL A
needs to exercise judgement in applying the B -
Group’s accounting policies.
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. EET R A E T EE - BREEET R HE
They are based on historical experience and other DERBAKREAMEAREL 2R
factors, including expectations of future events that EHERBEAVBZERBEBEREARARE
may have a financial impact on the entity and that BHARREHFTEA -

are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.
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Net realisable value of inventories is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less estimated selling
expenses. These estimates are based on
the current market condition and the
historical experience of selling products
of similar nature. It could change
significantly as a result of changes in
consumer preferences and competitor
actions in response to severe industry
cycles. Management reassesses these
estimations by each date of the
statement of financial position to ensure
inventories are shown at the lower of
cost and net realisable value.

The fair value of financial instruments
that are not traded in an active market is
determined by using valuation
techniques. The Group uses its
judgement to select a variety of methods
and makes assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at
the end of each reporting period.

The Group is subject to income taxes in
the jurisdiction in which the Group
operates. There are transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax
audit issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the current and
deferred income tax assets and liabilities
in the period in which such
determination is made.
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The loss allowances for financial assets
are based on assumptions about risk of
default and expected loss rates. The
Group uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to
the impairment calculation, based on the
Group’s past history, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking
estimates at the end of each reporting
period.

The chief operating decision-maker has been
identified as the directors of the Company. The
directors review the Group’s internal reporting in
order to assess performance and allocate resources
and determine the operating segments based on
these reports.

The directors determine that the Group has two
reportable operating segments as follows:

(@) Display products segment; and

(b)  Optics products segment

The directors assess the performance of the
operating segments based on a measure of revenue
and results of each segment and do not assess the

performance based on segment assets and
liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GeMBRRME

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 9 ZBER (&

(@)

The segment information provided to the @ MUNTRE#TFTEFHE-ZT—/N\F
directors for the reportable segments for the T A=+ —HLEFEATHRSEDH
year ended 31 December 2018 is as follows: ") &K
Display products Optics products Total
BTER EER it

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

- SYCAN —T-+F P LEEN —T-+F EeLCEN —T-+f

Seqment revenue (@l from  ABUA(2BKE
external customers) HNE%PF)

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TEn TRT Tén TR TEn TAL

249,518 364,739 4,554 16,779 254,072 371,518

Segment resuls NH%E

(15,781) (67,886) (1,940) 1,628 (17,721) (56,358

Unallocated operating costs 7 7 B84 % &

(87,769) (40,959)

Finance costs, net SHEREE (354) (434
Loss before income tax ~ FrETSHAI AR (55,838) (97,751)
Other segment information: E 2 SH&EH :
(Write back of provision))  (REF&&ERRE)/

provision for obsolete REFEER

inventories (8,473) 37,059 707 550 (7,766) 37,609
The Group’s revenues from its major products b) BE-_T-N\F+-_A=+—HL

for the year ended 31 December 2018 are as

follows:

FR-ASEXREEHIEEMZK
AFIAT

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET

Thin film transistor liquid
crystal display (“TFT-LCD”)

BIRESBRABER

([TFT-LCD J) E#k &

panels and modules 48 226,154 330,304
Light guide plates & 5t iR 9,174 2,078
Polarisers 1R 5,208 5,896
Optics products HEBEm 4,554 16,779
Driver integrated circuits 6 &) 8% SR Pk B

(“1Cs”) ([EKERE]) 3,268 11,400
Others HAb 5,714 5,061

254,072 371,518

BxXXEHR-XAF 2018 £H
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FE M BREME

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 9 2BER (&

(c) Segment revenue by customers’ geographical () EEFHEMESHHDBUA
location
The amount of the Group’s revenue from AEEZEMBERPRNERAM I
external customers by locations where the EnMINBEPAEERASER
Group’s products are delivered to its TRIR -

customers is shown in the table below.

2018 2017
—2-N\f —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T T
Hong Kong BE 178,626 358,378
The PRC H 72,802 11,522
Taiwan =0 2,644 1,618
254,072 371,518
(d) Revenues from major customers who have ) REFERF(SHAEEEZEZE=ZT
individually contributed 10% or more of the —NFT+ZA=+—HLEFEHK
total revenue of the Group for the year ended A10% 3 A E) B9 A BRI T -

31 December 2018 are disclosed as follows:

2018 2017

= s —E—LF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FiE T T T

Customer A EPA 55,215 113,243
Customer B % FB 32,178 4,236
87,393 117,479

The above customers are included in the il EREFABTRERD A -

display products segment.
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(e)  An analysis of the Group’s non-current assets
(other than financial assets and deferred
income tax assets) by location of assets is as

follows:

As at 31 December 2018:

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

As at 31 December 2017:

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

R-ZZE-N\EF

t=A=t+-8:

FRBEE
WE - BER&E
BEE

R-ZB—+t&
+=B=+-—-8:
(RBEE

ME - BERRE

B EE

Revenue represents the sales of display panels,
optics products and related electronic components

to external parties.

Fair value changes in financial
asset at FVTPL

Net exchange loss

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Others

wa B RRME

e REENE AKEZFRPEE
(TEREREENEEMBSHE

E)DImT :
Hong Kong The PRC Total
g8 H #at
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHET
1,438 1,567 3,005
2,000 1,122 3,122
3,438 2,689 6,127

WAESHER I ER  KBERNMAERE
FEMFINFRANLAERA -

2017
—EFE—LtF
HK$’000
FHETT

BARBEFABRSZERE

EARBEED
FE 5 65 18 % 18

(156)

HEME BEMRBZER

H

109

(47)

2018 £ 3;
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Cost of sales, distribution and selling expenses, HENAN - DHEMHEERT - —MRITH
general and administrative expenses and research AERMARERAERZS>TAT
and development expenses are analysed as follows:

2017

—E—tF

HK$’000

FAT

Cost of inventories sold HERFEKAR 360,744
Processing and sub-contracting i1 T K98 &

expenses 9,030
Provision for onerous contract &5 1814 & 49 # & (K 7£23(b) )

(Note 23(b)) 10,530
Transportation expenses EWER 1,078
(Write back of provision)/ (REFERERRE)

provision for obsolete BREFERE

inventories (Note 19) (B 5E19) 37,609
Auditor’s remuneration % EAD B &

— Audit services — BT RT 1,500

— Non-audit services — FEFEFRH 96
Employee benefit expenses & 8 & F 7 32 (P 529)

(Note 9) 05,198
Depreciation of property, plant  #1% - HE KR EITE

and equipment (Note 14) (Mg 5E14) 1,856
Operating lease rentals in respect B FEEHER S

of buildings 7,334

2017
—ET—tF
HK$’000
FAT
Short-term employee benefits HHEERF (KE)

(Note) 23,782
Post-employment benefits 1B B iR IK1E F

— defined contribution plans — TEHBAREE 1,416
Total employee benefit expenses, EE@FIFA S 8% - RIEESH

including directors’ [0l

remuneration 25,198
Note: Short-term employee benefits represent salary, wages, Mie: SHEEBRFEINEENTF S TERTE

bonus paid to employees, staff quarter expenses and A -BEIBEEEAUKEIRBENRE
insurance premium for staff insurance schemes. & o
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No forfeited contributions for the Group is
available to reduce the contribution payment in
the future years. Contributions to schemes
vest immediately.

The five individuals whose remuneration were
the highest in the Group for the year include
three directors (2017: three) whose
remuneration are reflected in the analysis
shown in Note 33. The emoluments payable to
the remaining two (2017: two) individuals
during the year are as follows:

Basic salaries, staff quarter EAITE BEIFES
expenses, other allowances Rt ~ H b E Ak

and benefits in kind R E Y& R
Contribution to pension RIRETEIH R
scheme

The number of highest paid non-director
individuals whose remunerations for the year
fell within the following bands:

Emolument bands: B < &5 [ :
HK$nil to HK$1,000,000
HK$1,500,001 to

HK$2,000,000 2,000,0007% 7T

Z 3% T 1,000,000 7T
1,500,001/ 7T &

wa B RRME

7R 55 8] 15 48 45 04 UK # R 5R AR LA B R
RREREO K - BB MR
ARB -

FAXKEELRRSFTMALERRE
ZREE(CTE—tF:=8)H
¥ B S BR X PN REGSPT B KO 0 AT E
FeERNENBTME(ZE—+1
FMB)ALZBMEWT

2017
—E—+F
HK$’000
FA T

2,136

24
2,160

AEEHFMATUTRENFES
BEHFMALHABDT :

2017
—ET—+F
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For the year ended 31 December 2018, no
remuneration (2017: Nil) was paid by the
Group to the directors or the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office, and no arrangement under which a
director or the five highest paid individuals
waived or agreed to waive any of the

remuneration.

Finance income
Interest income on:
Pledged bank deposits
Bank deposits

Finance costs
Interest expenses on:
Bank loans
Factoring charges

Finance costs, net

M BRA

BE_Z2—N\F+=_A=+—8H1
FE AEBRRAEETIAEESD
FMATZNEMEM - EREM
AXEB R EE) BRI E I E
FREEXRE R FHMALHE
SEEREBEFHNLZHE(ZZE—
F|E)o

2017
—E—+F
HK$’000
FB T

AT B IEEMENB WA :

B MR (TR
#1717 5

MBER

145
24

169

UT&EEBEMNBRAX

RITER
RIEEH

8175 & R % R

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate

of 16.5% (2017: 16.5%)

on the estimated

assessable profit during the year arising in or
derived from Hong Kong. Taxes on profits
assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the
rates of tax prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions in

which the Group operates.

Annual Report 2018
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The amount of income tax (credited)/charged to the Rire2EBER GEA) RS H
consolidated statement of comprehensive income SEIE
represents:
2017
—ET—tF
HK$’000
FAT
Current income tax: EHEN
— Inside Hong Kong — BAEN 482
— Outside Hong Kong — BABFEIN 51
— Adjustments in respect of — HBRTFENRHE

prior years 113
Total current income tax EHMEH AR 646
Deferred income tax EREFTIF T

— Origination and reversal of — EERBOERER

temporary differences (B 5E25)

(Note 25) (68)
Income tax Frig it 578
The income tax on the Group’s loss before income AN & B 3 R BT A5 B0 BT S 18 FE A P 15 6
tax differs from the theoretical amount that would {57 FR 7 52 [ 1) 7 P 408 R O 756 K i 28 A A 38
arise using the tax rate applicable to the Group as WEHEBEMER  BBHNOT:
follows:

2017
—E—tF
HK$’000
FAT
Loss before income tax bR FT 1S Bl AT & 1B (97,751)
Tax calculated at Hong Kong tax % & & £16.5%+ E KT IE
rate of 16.5% (2017: 16.5%) (ZT—+F:16.5%) (16,128)
Tax effects of: NWTEEAMEZE
— Different taxation rate in — EMEEEER TR
other jurisdictions = (151)
— Income not subject to tax — BAZH KA (1)
— Expenses not deductible for — TR {EFF A& 8 E A
tax purposes 286
— Utilisation of previously — [ERLRTEERT
unrecognised tax losses THE 18 —
— Tax losses for which no — WEBRRREEFREHE

deferred income tax asset ErRIEEE

was recognised 16,459
Adjustment in respect of prior HBEFENRARE

years 113
Income tax Frig it 578
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Basic loss per share for the year is calculated by FRNSREARNEBNEARAEZEAR
dividing the loss attributable to equity holders of the AEEEERRFANERITEBRR 2N
Company by the weighted average number of ETFHEETE -

ordinary shares in issue during the year.

2017
Tt
Loss attributable to equity holders 7R &l #E 53 B A JE1G &8
of the Company (HK$'000) (F#E7T) (98,329)
Weighted average number of BT ERR 2 ME T E
ordinary shares in issue (FA&)
(thousands) 1,483,687
Basic and diluted loss per share & % & 7 & # 5% 5518
(HK cents per share) (&R EA) (6.63)
For the purpose of determining the diluted loss per HEETSREEEIEMS  ARNAEER
share amount, no adjustment has been made to the Bz ZE—"N\FrR-_ZE—tF+=H
basic loss per share amount for the years ended 31 =t BItFETEEMDBTETES
December 2018 and 2017 as the Group had no L@ MU ERXESEETE2INERE

potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during RNEBELFHE-
these years.
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The following

December 2018:

Name

1

Rightone Resources

Limited (“Rightone”)

Rightone Resources

Limited ([ Rightone )

Shinwa Technology
Limited
HERRBRAA

Sinosky Resources
Limited

Sinosky Resources
Limited

Dexing Investment Limited

Dexing Investment Limited

Yuan Tai Investment
Limited
BafZgRAF

Perfect Display
Limited

EXBERERAT

is a

Place of
incorporation/
establishment and
kind of legal entity
HMAL/ KL%
REZERER

British Virgin Islands
(‘BVI), limited
liability company

ARRLES

(RERXES])

ARAA

BV, limited liability
company

RERTES
BRAT

BV, limited liability
company

RERTES
BRAA

BV, limited liability
company

EERAES
BRAT

Samoa, limited liability

company

EEZBRAT

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

ERARAR

list of subsidiaries at 31

Principal activities
and place of
operation

ITEXBREEHE

Investment holding

AR

Holding of patents

BEEMN

Investment holding

Trading of display panels
and related electronic
components in Hong

Kong

RERHERTARR

REETHT

RZB-N\F+ZA=+—BHOHBRAF

YN

Particulars of issued
share capital/

paid up capital
BRTRG/BH
BRAREE

10,000 ordinary
shares at no par
value

10,0000 EE &
LAk

1 ordinary share at no
par value
IREAEEER

1 ordinary share at no
par value

IREREE AR

1 ordinary share at no
par value
REREEER

100 ordinary shares of
USD1 each

100k & R E E1 T
LAk

38,000,000 ordinary
shares

38,000,000/ & & A&

wa B RRME

Proportion of
ordinary shares
directly held by

the Company
RANRERKE

EERLA
(%)

100%

Proportion of
ordinary shares
held by

the Group
AEEREZ
EER LA
(%)

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

2018 £ 3;
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Name

2R

Perfect Sky Technology
Limited

ERMRBRAT
Dexing Technology
Development Limited

RANBERARAA

Dexing Materials

Technology (Dongguan)

Company Limited
BAMEBR(RER)
BRAA

Yuan Mei Xin Technology
(Shenzhen) Company
Limited

Ex&RE ORI
ARAA

Yuan Tian Technology
(Shenzhen) Company
Limited

Place of
incorporation/
establishment and
kind of legal entity

AMRL/ Y%

REREREN

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

EEAERRA

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

BEERRA

The PRC, limited
liability company

PEARAA

The PRC, limited
liability company

PEARAA

The PRC, limited
liability company

EAME (RN ERLA FEERAT

Principal activities

and place of share capital/

operation paid up capital
BRTRG/EH

TEXBRBERY RERR

Electronic product
application development
in Hong Kong

REBENETER
AR

Investment holding

8 R 1RERR

Not yet commenced USD50,000
business

AARER 50,000% T

Wholesaling, import and ~ USD1,000,000
export of display panels
and related electronic
components and
provision of technical
support and related
services in the PRC

R EREBETERRIER 1,000,000% T
ETHAMLE €O
RIEA - A RIRE 5
X ERBERE

Research and development, USD100,000
provision of technical
support and related
services in the PRC

R B RERRIZE 100,000% 7T
RRBR%

Annual Report 2018

Particulars of issued

1 ordinary share

Proportion of
ordinary shares
directly held by

the Company
KRAREERE

LRRLA
(%)

Proportion of
ordinary shares
held by

the Group
FEEREL
LER LA
(%)

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%



Name

2R

Yuan Tai Electronics
Company Limited

B4ETRHAERA

Perfect Shiny Technology

Limited

EHREARA A

Perfect Shiny Technology

(HK) Limited

EH B3 (EE) ARAE

Perfect Shiny Technology

(Shenzhen) Limited

Bt (RINERAA

Skyteam Resources
Limited

Skyteam Resources
Limited

Naruto Technology
Limited
BRAMRARAA

jeall]

Place of
incorporation/
establishment and
kind of legal entity
ERAL BT
RERERER

Taiwan, limited liability
company

AR
Samoa, limited liability
company

EEZBRAH

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

EEARAR

The PRC, limited
liability company

PEARAA

BV, limited liability
company

RERNES
BRAT

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

ERARLA

Principal activities
and place of
operation

IEXBREEHE

Not yet commenced
business

ARREH

Investment holding

Design, development and

sales of applied

optics-related products

in Hong Kong

ERBRG FERHEER

ALSEM

Sales, research and
development of

optics-related products

in the PRC

RABHERAEXE2ER

Em

Investment holding

RAER

Not yet commenced

business

ARREH

Particulars of issued
share capital/

paid up capital
BRTRG/EH
RAFE

500,000 ordinary
shares of TWD10
each

500,000% & AR (B3
aEI0TH Bk

500,000 ordinary
shares of USD1
each

500,000 & R E &
1R EBR

1 ordinary share

RMB1,000,000

A K #1,000,0007

1 ordinary share at no
par value
TREREEEBR

10,000,000 ordinary
shares
10,000,000 & i# &

wa B RRME

Proportion of
ordinary shares
held by

the Group

Proportion of
ordinary shares
directly held by

the Company
ARAERRE  FREREZ

LRRLA EERLA
(%) (%)

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%
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Name

2R

Perinnova Limited
(“Perinnova’)
Perinnova Limited

(I Perinnova ])

Perfect Intelligent
Technology Limited

EAXBEMBRARAD

ol)

Fayeking Technology
Limited

ROBEARRA

Place of

incorporation/ Principal activities
establishment and and place of

kind of legal entity ~ operation

ERAL BT

REeERER TEXBRBERY

BVI, limited liability Not yet commenced

company business
RERNES AREEH
BRAA

Hong Kong, limited

liability company sales of digital

Design, development and

Proportion of
ordinary shares
directly held by

the Company

Particulars of issued
share capital/
paid up capital

BRARS/EE  ARAEEER
e ZERL A
(%)

1 ordinary share at no -
par value
IRERESBER

10,000 ordinary -
shares

EEARAR]

o

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

EEARAR]

information signage and
electronic shelf display
products in Hong Kong
REERE  AERHEEH 10,000/ & &K
BERRRETER
BRaEm

Design, development and 10,000 ordinary
sales of electronic shares
products in Hong Kong

REBR: RERHEE  10000REBK
B7ER

Annual Report 2018
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At 1 January 2017
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December
2017

Opening net book amount

Currency translation
differences

Additions

Depreciation charge

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2017

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December
2018

Opening net book amount

Currency translation
differences

Additions

Disposals

Depreciation charge

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2018

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Leasehold
improvements
e
BRER
HK$'000
FET
R-E—+&-f—H
KA 1,433
ZitHE (1,285)
EE%E 148
BE_T—+&+-A
Sr=FE4EE
FNRAFE 148
NEREES
4
2 99
FEX (100)
FRERFE 151
R-_E—+&+-A
=+-H
A 1,549
ZiNE (1,398)
FEFE 151
BE_ZF-\#1+ZAR
S+-AILFE
FNREFE 151
NEHEEE
(69)
m 1,679
k=3 =
REXH (334)
FRERFAE 1,433
RZE-\F+=A
=t+-H
A 3,143
ZitiE (1,710)
FEFE 1,433

Moulds and
machinery
BE
R
HK$'000
THT

537

537

537

65
1353
(741)

1,214

1,987
(773

1,214

1214

(23)

(883

308

1888
(1,580)

308

Furniture
and office
equipment

HBERH

NERE

HK$'000

TET

1,681

(1,296)

285

285

16
123
(210)

214

1,781
(1,567)

214

2229
(1,679)

556

wa B RRME

Motor
vehicles Total
RE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TEL
4,639 8,190
(2,416) (4,997)
2,223 3,193
2,223 3,193
8 93
- 1,575
(805) (1,856)
1,426 3,005
4,688 10,005
(3,262) (7,000)
1,426 3,005
1,426 3,005
= (112)
= 2,229
- (13)
692) (2,078)
734 3,031
4,651 11,911
(3,917) (8,880)
734 3,031
2018 F 3
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The Group’s intangible assets as at 31 December AEBR=ZZE—N\FT+_A=1T—8BEK=
2018 and 31 December 2017 comprise membership E—+FTA=T—HNEFEERR
rights and are stated at cost less any impairment SEEN  BEBEAEEN ST BUERZRKA
losses in accordance with the Group’s accounting WAEMRERBEIE NEEBRBEZS
policies. There were no movement in the Group’s —N\F+—A=+—HBE=_ZT—+tF+=
intangible assets during the vyears ended 31 A=+ BULHFENEFEELEES -

December 2018 and 31 December 2017.

The Group holds the following financial instruments AEER=ZTE-—NEFE+_A=+—8%H
at 31 December 2018: Tr @I A:
2017
—+tF
HK$’000
FAT
Financial assets TREE
Financial assets at LAY BR A & B
amortised cost: BE
Trade and other FE W R K K&
receivables o e R 47,820
Restricted bank deposits PR #l$R 1717 X 20,948
Cash and cash e RkREFEY
equivalents 88,025
Financial assets at FVOCl & AR EE AEAM
FPHENEHEREE —
Financial assets at FVTPL & A # BET AE D
TREE —
AFS financial assets AfHESREE 56,947
213,740
Financial liabilities cRAaE
Liabilities at amortised cost: % & $4 Ak 78 71] BR &)
A&
Trade and other payables &1 BR 3 & H 4th
J& 7 3K 18,696
Bank borrowings RATIE R
18,696
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The Group’s financial asset at FVOCI AEBZAAEEFARLMEEY
comprises the Group’s equity investment in ENEREEREAEEN —HL
certain ordinary shares issued by a private ARRIFZEITE TERARMNRER
company principally engaged in the research & - {H% 2 A #I3.33% % 8 > 2% L A
and development, manufacturing and sale of NAlEBRBHE - BERHER
separator which is a key component in lithium HER(REEMNEERD) - &8
battery, representing an approximately 3.33% IAFT B EEETE -
shareholding of such company. The balance is
denominated in TWD.
HK$°000
FAETT
Balance at 31 December 2017, as RZTE—+tF+=-A=+—H2
originally presented e R -
Change in accounting policy (Note 2.2) & &t B 5% & &) ([ff 5£2.2)
— Reclassify from AFS financial asset to — f A] i & © B & & S 3 9 17
financial asset at FVOCI BREARBEFAREMER
WaHz e/ & E 2,678
Balance at 1 January 2018, as restated WR_-_Z—\F—HA—B &%
57 i 2,678
Losses recognised in other comprehensive 7 b & [ W &5 A 2 2 &5 18
income (26)
Balance at 31 December 2018 RZZTE—NFE+ZA=+—H2
5 BR 2,652
As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s AFS R_F—+tHF+_A=+—H K&
financial assets included the following classes SENMHLESREERTE TIE
of financial assets: RIH & B & E
HK$’000
FAT
Balance at 1 January 2017 RZTE—tF—A—HZ&#® 31,671
Additions NE o 2,606
Fair value gains on revaluation recognised R E i 2 WK ERZ EMH AR
in other comprehensive income B E W= 22,670
Balance at 31 December 2017 RZZTE—+tF+=ZA=+—H2
g 56,947
Unlisted preferred shares FLTEAR 54,269
Unlisted equity securities I £ TR B FH 2,678
56,947
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The Group’s financial asset at FVTPL comprises the
holding of certain preferred shares in Mobvoi Inc.
(“Mobvoi”), a private company principally engaged in
the business of developing and providing voice
search systems on mobile, smart wearable and other
devices. The balance is denominated in USD. There
have been no addition to or disposal of such
investment since the Group made the investment in
January 2015. The most recent issue by Mobvoi of
new preferred shares to a new investor took place
in late March 2017 and the Group’s shareholding in
Mobvoi was diluted to approximately 1.53% (on a
fully diluted and as converted basis).

AEEBEREARBEFABEZNERMEES
¥ # BMobvoi Inc. ([ Mobvoi |) #& T 18 %
% * Mobvoi& == B {55 % MR F % -
BEMBARBEREMREBEZESERE
REBNFLARNT LB AFZITEHE -
BEAREBR - —HF— AERZIRE
R BBRETERE S E - Mobvoifk
MR- E—+F=ZAKR—ZHIREE R
1THBAER% - 1 7K & B H Mobvoi #Y B% 2 #
BEOI3%(RerE@#ENCEREE
E) -

HK$’000
FET
Balance at 31 December 2017, as originally RZZE—+tF+-A=+—RH2
presented HEER o IR -
Change in accounting policy (Note 2.2) SEHBEREE (MiF2.2)
— Reclassify from AFS financial asset to financial — BRIt HEL R EEEFH H 1A
asset at FVTPL BREAREBEFAHEMER
WmremEE 54,269
Balance at 1 January 2018, as restated RZE—N\F—A—HZ2&% "
K& 54,269
Gains recognised in other gains/(losses), net ~ REMIZE (BB RER 2K
R ER 719
Balance at 31 December 2018 RZE—NFE+ZA=+—H2
A5 BR 54,988
2017
—E—+tF
HK$’000
FAET
Work in progress RS 6,170
Finished goods 5E X i 132,249
Less: Provision for obsolete BoBRETERE
inventories (61,086)
77,333

AEERAABBAIITATEEXRAKNF
& KR 269,056,000/ 7T (ZF — + 4 ¢
360,744,000/ 7T ) (I 5£8) °

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and
included in “cost of sales” amounted to
HK$269,056,000 (2017: HK$360,744,000) for the
year (Note 8).
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A write back of provision for obsolete inventories of
HK$7,766,000 (2017: provision for obsolete
inventories of HK$37,609,000) was recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income in
respect of the net amount of the (write back of
provision)/provision for obsolete inventories, loss on
obsolete inventories, utilisation of provision for
obsolete inventories and write-down of inventories to
their net realisable value for the year. These
amounts have been included in cost of sales in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Trade receivables (Note (a))
Bills receivables (Note (a))

& W R 3R (Bt £ (a))
FE W =4z (Kt £ (a))

wa B RRME

AEBERTFRNER (REFEHD FME),/
BMEFTERE BETEHE BHAME
GEREBRMRGTEEZEATEEFEMR
HETARSRERREFTERERD
7,766,000 L (ZE—+F  REGFTER
1#37,609,000/8 7T ) - ZERIA DT ALE
PHEHWNEROEEXRIET -

2017
e
HK$°000
T T

44,411
446

44,857

Prepayments, deposits and other 8138 ~ & & & £ b & I 3%

receivables

Notes:

(@) The Group generally grants credit periods of 30 to 90 days.
The ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables based on
invoice date were as follows:

0-30 days 0-30X
31-60 days 31-60K
61-90 days 61-90K
91-180 days 91-180K

4,116

48,973

M EE

(@) ANEE—BFEEI0EWRMEEL - RIFRE
AHETEMRERERRZERENREDMOT

2017
—E—tF
HK$°000

F %t

42,601
1,559
697

44,857
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FE M BREME

20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b) As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s trade receivables of
HK$1,894,000 (2017: HK$990,000) were past due but not
impaired. The ageing analysis of trade receivables that were
past due but not impaired is as follows:

20 MW AR K H fl B WK ()

FeE : (&)

(b) R-ZE—N\E+=-A=+—80 A£ECHH
18 5K 5 B A9 FE UK BR 5% 421,894,000 Tt (= F
—-+ 4 : 990,000/ 7T) °

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—
HK$’000 HK$’000
F# T F %I

Amounts past due BHNRE
1-80 days 1-30K 945 990
31-60 days 31-60K 634 =
61-90 days 61-90K 315 =
1,894 990

For these past due trade receivables, the Group has
assessed the expected credit losses by considering
historical default rates, existing market conditions and
forward-looking information. Based on the assessment, ECL
rate of trade receivables is close to zero. Therefore, the
loss allowance provision for these trade receivables
balances was not material.

HRECARBEER  ARECEBEERB
FERE BRI MATREESR - FFEED
FEER - RIEABTE - BREFOEDRE
EBEXREOT A% S B UIRRAER(E
HE B RBEILTERK -

(© The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other () 7 5 B FE U AR R % HL A FE W R 2 BR T (B 1R LA
receivables are denominated in the following currencies: TE®EE:
2018 2017
= % —F—LF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHT F %t
HKS$ BT 1,357 1,180
usb E7T 4,076 45,022
RMB AR 7,914 2,767
TWD ek 4 4
13,351 48,973
(d) The fair values of trade and other receivables approximate (d) EREFRREMERRZ AR BEEREERR

their carrying amounts.
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GeMBRRME

21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 21 BE&RBRESEEYRZREIE
RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS TER
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FAT
Total bank deposits, bank ROTGER RITEHRREAS
balances and cash 4 =g 81,488 108,973
Less: Restricted bank deposits & : 5t AR 8 & & #) <R 4
included in current assets R1717 3k (M 5E24)
(Note 24) (10,335) (20,948)
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEEY 71,153 88,025

The carrying amounts of the Group’s total bank
deposits, bank balances and cash are denominated
in the following currencies:

AEBRITER  RITEHKRRRS ZKRE

BERTHEEFE :

2017
—T—+%F
HK$’000
FAT
HK$ BT 6,288 15,424
usb ET 71,371 89,761
RMB AR % 3,107 2,913
TWD ek 722 875
81,488 108,973
22 SHARE CAPITAL 22 KA
31 December 2018 and
31 December 2017
—EZ-N\Fg+=ZH=+-—H
r—=E2—+tHE+=-A=+-—H
Number of
shares Amount
BoEAE o
(thousands) HK$’000
(FA%) FHE T
Authorised: ERE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each # A% & i#®[%0.01/5 7T 5,000,000 50,000

BExXXEFR2A

2018 F #§
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mEMBRERMT
22 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 22 MR (4B)
Ordinary
Number of shares of
shares HK$0.01 each
BEREBER
B#HEE 0.01% 7t
HK$’000
FAT
Issued and fully paid: CORITREE:
At 1 January 2017, R—_ZE—+F—H—H-
31 December 2017, —E—fE+= A
1 January 2018 and =+—B .- N\&
1D 201 B _
31 December 2018 _R-AR-—E—N\4&
T=A=t—H 1,483,687,151 14,837
There were no movements in the Company’s share FA ARARABEFRAEH(ZF
capital during the year (2017: Nil). —tF &)
23 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 23 ENEREREEMEARK
2018 2017
—B-N\% —EFLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#& T FH T
Trade payables (Note (a)) FE AT BR 3R (B % (a) ) 15,370 14,077
Deposits received from WREFZS
customers 9,032 6,206
Accruals and other payables P& ST FIE K H b S R 3,448 4,679
Provision for onerous contract &5 1814 & 49 8 & (B 7 (b))
(Note (b)) - 10,530
27,850 35,492
Notes: B 5
(@) The ageing analysis of trade payables based on invoice date (@) BREZZABAENEMRERNERD T
is as follows: TS 8
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FA 7T
0-30 days 0-80% 14,341 13,504
31-60 days 31-60K 762 319
61-90 days 61-90K 59 -
91-180 days 91-180K 208 254
15,370 14,077
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Notes: (Continued)
(@) (Continued)

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables
approximate their fair values.

(b) As at 31 December 2017, the Group recognised a provision
of HK$10,530,000 for onerous contract in relation to certain
non-cancellable purchase orders for inventories. Such
balance was fully off-set against the purchase cost of
inventories during the year ended 31 December 2018.

Short-term bank loans RERITE X
The Group’s bank loans bear interest at 5.7% per
annum and are wholly repayable within one year.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank loans as
at 31 December 2018 approximated their fair values
and were denominated in RMB.

During the year, the Group’s banking facilities,
including borrowings, trade finance and other
general banking facilities were secured by:

(i) bank deposits of HK$10,335,000 as at 31
December 2018 (2017: HK$20,948,000) (Note
21);

(i)  corporate guarantees provided by the
Company; and

(i)  cross guarantees among subsidiaries of the
Company.

In addition to the above, the Group has agreed to
comply with certain loan covenants imposed by the
banks.

wa B RRME

MEEE : (48)
(@) (&)

FERTBR R E b R BRE(E R H DX A2 B
ERE -

m

(b) R-B—+E+_A=+—8 XEERETF
A FEFERBIENEBRBESNER
10,530,000/ 7T - BRAAMRBERERE =
T-N\F+_A=1+—"BLEFENTEXE

FRAS ©
2017
—— %
HK$ 000
T
RO RREENEST6HE ¥

AR — EWM@E

RZZ-NFE+-_A=+—H A&ER
ﬁg AZEHEREAAEBEMES BN
ARBETE-

FR - AEERTHE(REER EBS

BMEREM—ARRITRE) BATSEIEK

pic: I

() RZZE—NF+-—A=+—H8RT
15 310,335,000 L (ZF — £ F ¢
20,948,000/ 7t) (M 5£21) ;

(i) AREREZDFER: &

iy ARBMBRARZHEZRZXIRE -

Br EXCPTiiE SN - AEEE REETIRTT
METERLE-

2018 £ 3;
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The movements in deferred income tax assets/
(liabilities) in respect of accelerated tax depreciation
during the year are as follows:

Beginning of the year F 7))
Credited to the consolidated FFAGZEEZERER
statement of comprehensive (Mg 3E11)

income (Note 11)

End of the year FR

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax
loss carry-forwards to the extent that the realisation
of the related tax benefit through future taxable
profits is probable. As at 31 December 2018, the
Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets
of HK$25,530,000 (2017: HK$16,705,000) in respect
of tax losses of certain PRC subsidiaries of
HK$833,000 (2017: HK$1,421,000), which will expire
in five years, and tax loss of certain Hong Kong
subsidiaries of HK$153,468,000 (2017:
HK$99,091,000) which will not expire under current
tax legislation.

The Board of Directors did not declare any dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

Final dividend of HK1.0 cent per ordinary share,
approximately HK$14,837,000 for the year ended 31
December 2016 was paid in June 2017.

Annual Report 2018

HERFEANNERBTEEBNELTHRE
REE/(BRE)EHWT:

2017
—t%F
HK$’000
TAET

(137)

68
(69)

LP)’T REET R IE R B & &M

2 ME PR P AR B B IB Fl 2 T B R 2R FE ER B
*'J/FEEJXIE%—I b% Ht\—i_)\qz"?’fﬂ
—t+— B AEBEVERRELEHREHRE
25,530,000 (= T — + F:
16,705,000 7T) * H R #H T HEH B A A
) 7 18 85 48833,0008 T (= B — 4 ¢
1,421,000/ 70) (B R A F & K5 - LA K
ETEBMHMEBARNMKIEESI®B
153,468,000 (= T — £ F:
99,091,000/ 7o) (IR 1% B AT B &2 T & &k
) e

EXgUVEEREE_T-N\F+_-A
ST BLEFENEARE(ZT—t
FE) -

R_ZT— JCE/\H/}L’?&JL%ZE:Z?__\E
T A=t BULEFERAREERER
A%1.078 1l (414,837,000 75)



Loss before income tax
Adjustments for:

— Depreciation of property,

plant and equipment
(Note 14)

— (Write back of provision)/
provision for obsolete

inventories (Note 8)
— Provision for onerous
contract (Note 8)

— Finance income (Note 7)

— Finance costs (Note 7)

— Fair value gain on
financial asset at
FVTPL (Note 7)

— Loss on disposal of

property, plant and
equipment (Note 7)

in working capital

B P15 % A &5 18R
AT ZHAE
- ME BELERE
#reE (M EE14)

- (RETE#EE
e/ HREFE
15 (K sE8)

— BEMSHBE

(M 7E8)

B 75 W A (FfT 5E7)

e R (MW7)

— BARBEFABR
NERmMEEZ
AR EEKRR
(Bt 5E7)

— HEME - BE
K& E R
GETS

Operating loss before changes &8 & & & &) g 4% & &5 18
&)

Changes in working capital
— Inventories
— Trade and other
receivables

— Trade and other payables

Cash used in operations

H Al

K
— B R E A
J& 1 3%

REMBAAE

wa B RRME

2017
—EFE—L£F
HK$’000
FA T

(97,751)

1,856

37,609
10,530

(169)
603

(47,322)
52,581
37,574

(124,409)

(81,576)

2018 £ 3;



GREMBHERWE

Bank loans due
within 1 year

1TFREEN
RITEX
HK$°000
FATT
As at 1 January 2017 and RZE—+tF—HA—BEK
31 December 2017 —E—t+tF+ZA=+—H —
Cash inflows WERA 22,089
Cash outflows /& (13,110)
As at 31 December 2018 R_TE—N\F+_A=+—H 8,979
The Group acts as lessee under operating leases. AEBARKCEHENANEL - BEBEEFH
The Group had future minimum lease payments O BEEEHRE  ~EEMRR T &
under non-cancellable operating leases of buildings EESEHINAT :
as follows:
2017
—E—tF
HK$’000
FAT
No later than 1 year 16 R 7,000
Later than 1 year and no later 15 1% M5FE R
than 5 years 5,693
12,693
These leases typically run for an initial period of one ZEMENVRESN KA —ZENF -
to four years.
As at 31 December 2018, the Group has no RZE—N\F+-_A=+—8B KXEBWL
material contingent liabilities (2017: Nil). EEAIAREBBE(ZE—LF 8E)-
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The Company’s immediate and ultimate
holding company is Winful Enterprises Limited,
a company incorporated in the BVI and
ultimately controlled by Mr. Cheng Wai Tak, a
director of the Company.

Interests in subsidiaries are set out in Note
13.

Key management includes directors and senior
management. The compensation paid or
payable to key management for employee
services is shown below:

Short-term employee benefits %2 #i & & 18 F
Post-employment benefits & B R IR 18 7
— defined contribution plans

On 19 March 2019, Rightone, a direct wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
subscription and shareholders’ agreement (the
“Agreement”) with two independent third parties (the
“Investors”) for investments in shares of Perinnova,
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. Pursuant to the Agreement, each of the
Investors agreed to invest USD190,000 in
Perinnova. Upon completion of the subscription, the
Group will hold 62% equity interest in Perinnova,
while each of the Investors will hold 19%. As at the
date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements, the subscription has not yet completed.

— R RETE

wa B RRME

RABMBEERGRIERRAAR
Winful Enterprises Limited @ & & —
FRERBEXESTIMAZARF
KEAARRNEEFBER L ERRE
il o

TEEEAEBRREERGARER
cHEENRBONHENTIE
EEAENHHMAOT

2017
—T—LF
HK$’000
THAT

7,632

54

7,686

A—E—NF=ZA+NB  ARF—HE
B2 & W B A FRightone B8 /iy 2 8 37 55 =
H(HREE]DTLRE R R ([Z W
FD) O UEREARE —HEE2EWNBEAR
A)Perinnova® & 17 © RIEZ g SIE
& [F & ¥ Perinnovai% &190,000% T ° 578
HRE EIEE%  ANEE 4 BPerinnova
2% MEKREEBSTEFEEF19% °
RARGAEMEHRERA EBE  REEEMN
KM °

2018 £ 3;
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1 7% R MY EE

Assets
Non-current assets
Investments in
subsidiaries

Current assets
Other receivables
Amounts due from

subsidiaries
Cash and cash
equivalents

Total assets

Equity and liabilities
Equity attributable to
equity holder of the
Company
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity
Liabilities
Current liabilities

Other payables

Total liabilities

Note
B 5

BE
FRBEE
HHBLARINRE

EEAR

BEKk AR
AREREFBAEL
B

[
1 (b)

EReE
=R
RBAE

8
H At & 1 3K
REAR

Total equity and liabilites EZREEHAE

The statement of financial position of the
Company was approved by the Board of
Directors on 20 March 2019 and was signed

on its behalf.

Cheng Wai Tak
EEE

Director

Tse Ka Wing

EIES S

Director

Annual Report 2018

As at 31 December

R+=-—A=+-—-8°

2017

R —+F

HK$’000
TAT

525,657

525,657

238
101,223

5,053
106,514

632,171

14,837
616,235

631,072



At 1 January 2017 RZZ—+tF—-A—H
Loss for the year FEBAE
Dividends paid relating to 2016 X =F—A~F 2k E

At 31 December 2017 and RZE—tF
1 January 2018 TZA=+—-8Bk
—E-N\F—H—H
Loss for the year FEBE
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F
+-A=+-H

Note: Contributed surplus of the Company represents the
difference between the excess of the nominal value
of the Company’s shares issued and the aggregate
net asset value of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant
to a reorganisation for the listing of the Company.

wa B RRME

Share  Contributed Retained

premium surplus earnings Total
ROEE BABH EEhR At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
TET THET TR TET

(Note)

(Pt &E)
465,738 136,082 29,572 631,392
- - (320) (320)
- - (14,837) (14,837)
465,738 136,082 14,415 616,235
- - (96) (96)
465,738 136,082 14,319 616,139

M ARRZHABBKKRRARDAFE BT
BOEEERBERAAT LM ML
ZEMAMBBZHMEBRARZEEFE
A ZBHER -

2018 £ 3;
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1 7% R MY EE

The remuneration of every director and the

chief executive is set out below:

BESRTRBH ZFMMAT

Employer’s
Salaries, contribution
allowances to a
and retirement
benefits Discretionary benefit
Fees in kind bonuses scheme Total
2= 4:1 EEHRIK
ue RBEYUEF BMEEA BRI S MR st
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T T T T F#& T F#& T
For the year ended 31 BHE_T—-N\F+=A
December 2018 =t+t—BLEE
Executive directors: HITESE -
Mr. Cheng Wai Tak BIEEELE
(Chief Executive) (TTE 4 )
Mr. Liu Ka Wing BaRkfE
Mr. Tse Ka Wing HREEE
Independent non-executive B IEHTEFE :
directors:
Mr. Wong Yik Chung John =& £ %4
Mr. Wong Chi Chiu HEBELE
Mr. Li Shui Yan FmBLE
For the year ended 31 Hz-_2—tF+=A
December 2017 =t+t—BLEE
Executive directors: HITESE -
Mr. Cheng Wai Tak BREELE
(Chief Executive) (TTECAE ) = 5,196 = 18 5,214
Mr. Liu Ka Wing BErE — 636 - 18 654
Mr. Tse Ka Wing FREEE — 1,440 — 18 1,458
Independent non-executive B IEHTEE :
directors:
Mr. Wong Yik Chung John & ZE & %4 120 = = = 120
Mr. Wong Chi Chiu HEBESE 120 = = = 120
Mr. Li Shui Yan FmBKE 120 = = = 120
360 7,272 — 54 7,686

No directors waived or agreed to waive any MEZSERNFANENREWEML
emoluments during the year (2017: Nil). MM (ZF—tF: &) -

182
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None of the directors of the Company
received or will receive any retirement benefits
or termination benefits for the year ended 31
December 2018 (2017: Nil).

During the year ended 31 December 2018,
the Company does not pay consideration to
third parties for making available directors’
service (2017: Nil).

As at 31 December 2018, there are no loans,
quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements in
favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and controlled entities with such
directors (2017: Nil).

No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the years.

wa B RRME

REE_ZT—-—N\F+=ZHA=+—H
IEFE  BEARDAE R RIS
W B A fa] 28 0K 48 7 2k 4% LE 18 17 13 T
ZE—tFE) e

REBEE-_F-N\F+_A=+—H
LHFEE  ARALERRHEER
BXNREBEFE=A(ZF—1LF:
&)

RZZE-—NF+ZA=+—8 #
BEANRNES RESFEHZEH
REZEESNHEHERBR/ZEA
ZEFR EEFRREMRZREE (=
T—tF:E)-

RERLFRETAER SHEBR
AEBEBZEARS RHERA
MARRR R — R RART
EXERAEREa(TWERIHE

&)

2018 £ 3;
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B 5 =

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five
financial years, as extracted from the published audited

financial statements, is set out below.

Results

Revenue

(Loss)/profit for the year
attributable to:

Equity holders of the
Company
Non-controlling interests

Assets, liabilities and
non-controlling
interests

Total assets
Total liabilities
Non-controlling interests

ES

WA

515 (B4R) /
ibE
B

EVNGE S
B A

IR R 3

EE RBfEK
FERER

BEMBE
RERRE
EE g

Annual Report 2018

MBHRER)IEMAT

For the year ended 31 December

BEt-A=+—-HLEE

2017 2016
—T—+F ZZT-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEL
371,518 1,149,998
(98,329) 90,729

— (2,394)
(98,329) 88,335

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—-8
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FAT
298,353 502,122
(38,317) (152,169
260,036 349,959

2015
—ZE—AF
HK$'000
FAT

1,274,174

27,732
(2,290)

25,442

2015
—T-RF
HK$'000
FET

496,002
(216,273)
(15,248)

264,481

AEBERBELEAMBRFENREREE A
EANRGFEEESEHE(RMEAC N EREX

2014
—E-mF
HK$'000
FEL

1,299,495

26,148
(975)

25,173

2014
—T—EF
HK$’000
FHEL

423,296
(166,159)
(18,326)

238,811
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